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INVESTMENT AND CONSTRUCTION THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

JOINT STOCK COMPANY NO4 Independence — Freedom — Happiness
No: 27/2025/BC-ICON4 Hanoi, April 11, 2025
ANNUAL REPORT
Year 2024

I. GENERAL INFORMATION

1. General information

- Trading name:  Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company No4

(“TCON4™).

- Business Registration Certificate No. 0100105574 issued by Business
Registration Division — Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment for the first
time on 09 February 2006, as amended for the seventeenth on 10 Octorber 2022.

- Charter captital:  640,000,000,000 VND.

- Address: No. 243A De La Thanh, Lang Thuong Ward, Dong Da
District, Ha Noi City.

- Telephone: (024) 37 668 976 Fax:

- Website: www.icond.com.vn  Email: vanphong@icon4.com.vn

- Securities code: CC4

% Establish and development process:

Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company No4, formerly known as
Construction Company No4 — Ministry of Construction, was established on Octorber
18, 1959, as a result of the merger between the construction site of Ha Bac Fertilizer
Plant and the North Hanoi Architecture Company.

The development history of the Company over the past 65 years can be
summarized through the following periods:

- The period from 1960 to 1965: Construction of Fertilizer and Chemicals
Plant in Ha Bac Province;

- The period from 1965 to 1973: Shifting the focus of the mission to both
construction and preparing to defend the fatherland;

- The period from 1973 to 1990: Building during the period of reunification
and national renewal era;

- The period from 1990 to 1999: The period of renewal, integration, and
development;

- The period from 2000 to 2019: Equitization and transformation of the
business model.;

- The period from 2020 - present: Shifting the business focus from construction
and installation activities to primarily investment.

Page 1/54



% Significant events:

» Independence Orders and Decorations awarded by the State:

- On December 29, 1999: The Company was awarded the Third-Class
Independence Order by the President of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam, under
Decision No. 501 KT/CTN issued by the President.

- On January 6, 2005: The Company was awarded the Second-Class
Independence Order by the President of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam, under
Decision No. 9 QD/CTN issued by the President.

- On August 6, 2009: The Company was awarded the First-Class Independence
Order by the President of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam, under Decision No.
1129/QD/CTN issued by the President.

» On December 26, 2005: A significant milestone in the formation and
development of the Company. Construction Company No4 was transformed into
Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company No4 according to Decision No.
2370/QD-BXD issued by the Ministry of Construction.

» On January 29, 2008: The Company was granted a Public Offering
Certificate No. 287/UBCK-GCN by the State Securities Commission, with a total of
4,076,435 shares offered.

» On July 31, 2008: The Company received Official Letter No. 1549/UBCK
from the State Securities Commission, approving the Company’s issuance of shares
to key personnel and selected employees, with a total of 423,565 shares offered.

» On February 1, 2010: The Company was approved by the State Securities
Commission to issue shares to strategic shareholders, increasing the Company’s
charter capital from VND 90 billion to VND 133 billion.

» On March 14, 2011: The Company was granted Public Offering Certificate
No. 40/GCN-UBCK by the State Securities Commission, with a total of 2,700,000
shares offered, increasing the charter capital from VND 133 billion to VND 160 billion.

> On July 28, 2017: The Company’s shares were officially listed and traded on
the UPCOM market, according to Decision No. 547/QD-SGDHN dated July 21,
2017, by the Hanoi Stock Exchange.

» In September 2020: Hanoi Construction Corporation - JSC divested its entire
capital in the Company and is no longer a major shareholder of the Company.

» In January 2021: The Company successfully increased its charter capital
from VND 160 billion to VND 320 billion (as per the 15th amendment of the
Business Registration, dated January 27, 2021).

» On July 21, 2022: The Company was granted Public Offering Certificate No.
220/GCN-UBCK by the State Securities Commission, with a total of 3,200,000
shares offered, increasing the charter capital from VND 320 billion to VND 640
billion.

» In October 2022: The Company successfully increased its charter capital to
VND 640 billion (as per the 17th amendment of the Business Registration, dated
October 10, 2022).
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» In December 2021: The Company contributed capital to establish a
subsidiary, which is IKCONS Construction Joint Stock Company.

» In November 2022: Vietnam Packaging Corporation became a subsidiary of
the Company.

» In August 2022: NHT Global Trading Joint Stock Company became a
subsidiary of the Company,

» In May 2023: The Company successfully organized the Trade Union
Congress for the 2023-2028 term.

“* Events to celebrate 65th Anniversary of the Company's Establishment
(18/10/1959 — 18/10/2024)

= On July 30, 2024, the Company participated in a blood donation event
organized by Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company in collaboration with the
108 Military Central Hospital. The event saw enthusiastic participation from all
employees of the Company, united by the spirit of “Give blood, give life”

- On September 17, 2024, the Company, together with its member units within
the Taseco system and all employees of the Group, donated a total of VND 3.5 billion
to support the people of the northern provinces in overcoming the aftermath of Storm
No. 3, through the Central Committee of the Vietnam Fatherland Front,

2. Business lines and locations of the business

2.1. Business lines

- Investment and business in development of housing and urban infrastructure,
residential areas, industrial parks, real estate business and office rental services.

- Consulting, general contracting for consulting, and construction of
investment construction projects;

- Consulting, brokerage, and auctioning of real estate and land use ri ghts;

- Construction of types of houses:

- Construction of non-residential buildings;

- Construction of other civil engineering works:

- Completion of construction works.

- Management and provision of office building and apartment building
management services.

2.2. Location of business

The Company’s location of business are concentrated in the following
provinces/cities: Hanoi, Thanh Hoa, Ha Nam, Thai Nguyen, and Hoa Binh.

3. Information about governance model, business organization and
managerial apparatus

3.1. Governance model:
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3.2. Management structure:

a) General Meeting of Shareholders

The General Meeting of Shareholders (“GMS®) is the highest authority within
the Company, responsible for making decisions on all major matters in accordance
with the Law on Enterprise and the Company’s Charter.

b) Board of Directors

Board of Directors (“BOD”) is the management body of the Company,
responsible for making decisions on all matters related to the Company’s objectives
and interests, except for those matters under the authority of the GMS. The BOD
consists of 5 (five) members, who are elected or dismissed by the GMS.

BOD has rights and responsibilities as stipulated by the Company’s Charter and
applicable regulations.

¢) Board of Supervisors

Board of Supervisors (“BOS™) is elected by the GMS and consists of 3 (three)
members, representing the shareholders to oversee all business activities,
management, and operations of the Company:.

BOS has rights and responsibilities as stipulated by the Company’s Charter and
applicable regulations.

d) Board of Management

The Board of Management of the Company is responsible to and operates under
the leadership of the BOD. The Company has a General Director who oversees
operations and is assisted by Deputy General Directors. The General Director is the
legal representative of the Company in all business transactions and is responsible to
the BOD and the law for the performance of the assigned rights and duties. The Deputy
General Directors assist the General Director in managing and overseeing different
specialized activities, ensuring the implementation of the Company’s strategies and
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development plans. The General Director and Deputy General Directors have rights
and obligations as stipulated by the law and the Company’s Charter.

e) Functional departments and units

The Departments of the Company are operational departments, established
under the resolutions of the BOD to assist and advise the General Director in carrying
out the Company’s management, guidance, and operational functions in each
specialized field. The Company currently has 05 departments as follows:

- Office;

- Finance and Accounting Department;

- Economic and Technical Department;

- Project Development Department;

- Projects Management Unit.

1) Affiliated units of the Company

In 2024, the Company completed the procedure for terminating the operations
of 03 branches of the Company, which are located in Thai Nguyen, Da Nang, and
Bac Ninh. Additionally, in the first quarter of 2025, the Company finalized the
procedure for terminating the operations of the Construction Enterprise No. | Branch
(in Hanoi). The Company will continue to assess and proceed with the dissolution
procedures for 05 (five) branches that are currently inactive, in order to complete the
organizational structure.

3.3. Subsidiaries and affiliated companies
- List of subsidiaries:

Crmer Main business
No. Name Address ship b
: activities
ratio
A I 4T & tion;
IKCONS 7% Floor, ICON4 Tower, : onstn.xc on;
; . 243A De La Thanh, industrial
1 Construction Joint 51% .
Stock Compar Lang Thuong, Dong Da, production; real
¢ peny Ha Noi, Vietnam. estate business; ...
Real estate business,
iai Ph H ffi i
Visinam Padkaging 2{33 Giai Phong, .oang 66.27 9 ice ' leasing,
2 , Liet, Hoang Mai, Ha 2 industrial warehouse
Corporation - Yo
Noi, Vietnam. and storage
leasing....
Wholesale of
NHT Global 7" Floor, ICON4 Tower, gypsum and clinker;
: . 243A De La Thanh, wholesale of cement
3 | Trading Joint Stock 50.5% R
Company () Lang Thuong, Dong Da, and construction
e Ha Noi, Vietnam. materials; wholesale
of metal materials,...
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() The Company completed the divestment in Quarter 1 of 2024 according to Resolution No.
03/2024/NQ-HDQT dated January 30, 2024 of BOD.

- List of affiliated companies and companies with Company’s investment:

Owner Main
No. Name Address ship business
ratio activities
th
Inves@ent and 7% Floor, ICON4 Tower, 243A ) Constistio
I | Construction No4.2 | De La Thanh, Lang Thuong, | 30% T
B Joint Stock Company | Dong Da, Ha Noi, Vietnam.
Investment and h s
1 :
Constitetion Nok 5" Floor, Tay Ha Building, 19 Bonativicton
2 . To Huu, Trung Van, Nam Tu | 4% S
VARRUENIOIE. | 1o Ha ol Viding vesmen
Stock Company ) ’ . -
Number 4.5 S |
Mt agd 319/C11 L?i Thuong Klet? Fatiatriian
3 . . Ward 15, District 11, Ho Chi | 7.5% ivasiment
Construction Joint Minh City. Vietnam invesimen
Stock Company @ R '
) Thanh Binh Industrial Zone
HABAK J _ ) :
4 Sé:‘mk - a‘i:'“ Thanh Binh, Cho Moi, Bac| 0.5% rg;’:‘;n
PAY | Kan, Vietnam. 3 -

@) The Company completed the divestment in Quarter 3 of 2024 according to Resolution No.
16/2024/NQ-HDQT dated August 7, 2024 of BOD.

) The Company completed the divestment in Quarter 4 of 2024 according to Resolution No.
28/2024/NQ-HDQT dated November 235, 2024 of BOD.

4. Development orientations
4.1. Main objectives of the Company

The Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company No4 committed to
sustainable development goals in the following key areas: Real estate investment and
business, construction and installation, and building management and operation
services. With a strong focus on enhancing the Company’s position in the real estate
investment and business sector, Company’s goal is to become a leading investor in
the real estate market, delivering practical benefits to its customers, shareholders, and
employees, while fulfilling our responsibilities to the State and society.

4.2. Development strategies in medium and long term

- Continue to maintain and expand the core business of construction and
installation services — the traditional sector of the Company, through its subsidiary,
IKCONS Construction Joint Stock Company. Construction activities will focus on
projects within the Taseco system and with strategic partners;

- Optimize and improve the quality of building management services for
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ICON4 Tower. Complete ICON4 Tower as a prominent image and a strong brand
promotion for the Company.

- Seek new business opportunities aligned with the Company’s strategic
direction, particularly in real estate investment and development, alongside
opportunities in other sectors such as clean water plant investments, social housing,
the renovation of old apartment buildings, and the cultivation of green plants for
projects of Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company (“Taseco Land”).

- Enhance corporate governance capacity, invest in employee training, and
create a working environment that attracts high-quality talent, while continuing to
build and promote corporate culture.

- Accelerate digital transformation: Implement the roadmap for digital
transformation to improve technology applications in corporate governance, project
management, business operations, and post-investment management.

- Strengthen risk management and internal control: Complete the risk
Mmanagement system, ensuring legal compliance while enhancing transparency and
efficiency in internal controls. Ensure the Company’s operations comply with legal
regulations and market practices.

4.3. Corporate objectives with regard to Corporate environment, society and
community sustainability

The Company places great emphasis on investing in and overseeing the
implementation of industrial safety and hygiene measures at construction sites and
workplaces, as well as fire prevention and reducing negative environmental impacts
at ICON4 Tower, projects, and construction sites. These efforts ensure compliance
with labor safety standards and environmental protection regulations, fostering a safe
and sustainable working environment.

3. Risks probably affecting the production and business operations of the
Company
5.1. Economic and policy risks

Despite positive signals indicating a recovery in the construction sector in 2024,
presenting potential for a new growth cycle in infrastructure investment and real
estate development, there are also challenges from macroeconomic factors such as
growth rates, average income, inflation, and changes or adjustments in government
policies. These include regulations related to investment, construction, land, housing,
real estate, credit, and securities, which can create difficulties in project execution
and increase legal risks, as well as the potential for disputes.

5.2. Interest rate and inflation risks

With the economic fluctuation, particularly during periods of unstable growth,
changes in interest rates and credit policies present significant risks to the Company’s
real estate and construction operations. An increase interest rates or tighter credit
conditions from banks can raise borrowing costs and reduce the ability to raise funds
for new projects of the Company.
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Furthermore, when inflation is high, rising prices, especially for key
construction materials such as cement, steel, and other inputs, can drive up project
costs, making it more difficult to recover capital, sell construction products, and
directly impact the Company’s operations.

5.3. Market Risks

The investment and business of real estate, and construction markets are
sensitive to economic developments. Real estate demand fluctuates over time and is
influenced by economic, social, and consumer sentiment factors. Therefore, if the
Company does not respond quickly to market changes, it may face difficulties in
strategic investment planning, potentially leading to oversupply or undersupply in
certain real estate segments. In such an environment, companies must be innovative,
adaptable, and constantly updated on market trends to maintain their competitive
advantage.

5.4. Risks from Natural Disasters and Epidemics

Other risks, such as natural disasters or epidemics, could cause damage to assets
and human resources, negatively impacting the Company’s productivity, revenue,
and project timelines. These events may lead to workforce shortages or temporary
suspensions of work as employees take necessary precautions, thus affecting the
quality of work and reducing the company’s business performance.

II. OPERATIONS IN THE YEAR

1. Situation of production and business operations
1.1. Business performance results for the year 2024
a) Construction and installation works

«* The Company continues to implement construction contracts for key projects
signed with its parent company - Taseco Land:

- Completion of the settlement for the finishing, M&E, and high-end interior
works for the apartments in the NOI-T6 Building Project (part of the NOI1-T6, T7
Mixed-Use Building Project in the Hanoi Diplomatic Area), with a revenue of VND
4.1 billion.

- Completion of the settlement for the technical infrastructure packages in the
new urban area project within the Thanh Hoa No. 4 New Urban Area Project (Thanh
Hoa No. 4 Project), including works on land leveling, sidewalk paving, traffic, pile
driving, street lighting installation, and landscape tree planting. The revenue achieved
in 2024 was VND 47.8 billion.

- Execution of construction works and implementation of construction
contracts for the Nam Thai Mixed-Use Commercial and Service Complex Project in
Nam Tien Ward, Pho Yen City, Thai Nguyen Province (Nam Thai Project); tree
planting for the residential area project at the resettlement site in Hai Yen, Thanh Hoa
(Nguyen Binh Project) (now in Nguyen Binh Ward, Nghi Son Town, Thanh Hoa);
and the Dong Van III Industrial Support Zone (Ha Nam). The revenue achieved in
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and the Dong Van III Industrial Support Zone (Ha Nam). The revenue achieved in
2024 was VND 145.6 billion.

*¢ The construction and installation worsk of IKCONS Construction Joint Stock
Company (“IKCONS”) — a subsidiary of the Company — achieved a revenue of VND
650 billion from its construction activities (at projects such as Thanh Hoa Project No.
4, Nguyen Binh Project in Thanh Hoa, KN Paradise in Cam Ranh, and Nam Thai in
Thai Nguyen) making a significant contribution to the Company’s consolidated
revenue.

b) Management of ICON4 Tower

- The management of ICON4 Tower has been carried out effectively, ensuring
security, safety, and regular maintenance, repair, and upgrading of
systems/equipment to enhance service quality for customers.

- The Company has signed a building management and operation service
contract with International Real Estate Management Joint Stock Company to ensure
the provision of optimal, convenient services that fully satisfy customer requirements,
while also optimizing the building's operational efficiency, aiming for sustainable and
long-term development.

- The revenue from building management services and leasing of office space
and warehouses achieved in 2024 was VND 63.9 billion.

¢) Settlement and debt recovery of outstanding works

For long-standing outstanding projects, in 2024, the Company successfully
recovered, processed, and reduced some receivables and payables, as detailed below:

- Receivables from Building Management Services: The Company has
diligently managed and recovered debts from the building’s management services.
Following a thorough assessment of recoverability, the Company has set aside VND
74 million as a provision for doubtful debts regarding receivables from customers
that have been dissolved or ceased operations.

- Receivables from Construction Projects: The Company has recovered VND
3.6 billion in receivables from old projects, and has also processed and offset
customers receivables totaling VND 5.5 billion. Additionally, following a thorough
assessment of recoverability, the Company has set aside VND 1 billion as a provision
for doubtful debts regarding receivables from customers that have been dissolved or
ceased operations. During the year, the Company also cleared guarantee liabilities
amounting to VND 12.7 billion.

- In 2024, the Company settled accounts for some old projects and offset the
recognition of unsold work-in-progress costs, amounting to nearly VND 14 billion.
In 2024, the Company completed the settlement of several old projects and offset the
reduction in work-in-progress production costs, amounting to VND 14 billion.

1.2. Key business indicators in 2024

Page 9/56



o __— 2024 Plan | 2024 Result | Result/ Plan
; (billion VND) | (billion VND) (%)
1 | Consolidated revenue 1,201.8 937.6 78.0
2 | Consolidated profit before tax 45.1 49.7 110.3
3 | Consolidated profit after tax 332 36.8 110.8

2. Organization and Human resource
2.1. List of Board of Management

No. Name Position Date of appointment
1 | Nguyen Duc Lai General Director 09/04/2022
2 | Nguyen Song Ha Deputy General Director 27/06/2022
3 | Khuat Trung Thang Deputy General Director 01/11/2024
4 | Pham Thi Kieu Trang Chief Accountant 09/04/2022

2.2, Curriculum vitae

a) Mr. Nguyen Duc Lai - General Director

- Name: NGUYEN DUC LAL

- Gender: Male.

- Date of birth: 21/04/1966.

- Place of birth: Ha Noi.

- Nationality: Vietnam.

- Qualifications: Civil Engineer, Master of International Business A dministration.
- Current position in the Company: Member of BOD, General Director.

- Current positions in other organizations:

+ General Director — Yen Binh Investment and Service Joint Stock Company.
+ Member of BOD — Tay Ha Construction — Investment Joint Stock Company;
+ Representative of Taseco Land’s capital at ICON4,

- Legal violations: None.

- Securities ownership of the individual and related persons in the Company:

+ Individual ownership: 180,000 shares', accounting for 0.28125% of the
charter capital;

+ Representative ownership: 50% of the Taseco Land’s shares in ICON4;

+ Ownership of related persons: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital.
- Outstanding debts to the Company: None.

- Related benefits to the Company: None.

! According to the sharcholder list provided by VSDC as of March 19, 2025.
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b) Mr. Nguyen Song Ha — Deputy General Director

-

Name: NGUYEN SONG HA.

Gender: Male.

Date of birth: 14/8/1971.

Place of birth: Ha Noi.

Nationality: Vietnam.

Qualifications: Civil Engineer, Master of Engineering.

Current position in the Company: Deputy General Director.

Current positions in other organizations: Chairman of BOD — THD Ha Noi

Construction and Investment Joint Stock Company.

+

+
-+

Legal violations: None.

Securities ownership of the individual and related persons in the Company:
Individual ownership: 48,000 shares?, accounting for 0.075% of the charter capital;
Representative ownership: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital;
Ownership of related persons: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital.
Outstanding debts to the Company: None.

Related benefits to the Company: None.

¢) Mr. Khuat Trung Thang — Deputy General Director

-

+ 4+ +

Name: KHUAT TRUNG THANG.

Gender: Male.

Date of birth: 18/12/1974.

Place of birth: Ha Noi.

Nationality: Vietnam.

Qualifications: Civil Engineering.

Current position in the Company: Deputy General Director.

Current positions in other organizations: None.

Legal violations: None.

Securities ownership of the individual and related persons in the Company:
Individual ownership: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital.;
Representative ownership: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital;
Ownership of related persons; 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital.
Outstanding debts to the Company: None.

Related benefits to the Company: None.

d) Ms. Pham Thi Kieu Trang — Chief Accountant, Authorized
representative for information disclosure

oy

Name: PHAM THI KIEU TRANG.
Gender: Female,
Date of birth: 29/08/1991.

? According to the shareholder list provided by VSDC as of March 19, 2025.
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- Place of birth: Lai Chau.
- Nationality: Vietnam.

Qualifications: Bachelor of Accounting,
- Current position in the Company: Chief Accountant.
- Current positions in other organizations:
+ Head of Board of Supervisors of IKCONS Construction Joint Stock Company.
+ Head of Board of Supervisors of Vietnam Packaging Corporation.
- Legal violations: None.
- Securities ownership of the individual and related persons in the Company:
+ Individual ownership: 19,999 shares, accounting for 0.03125% of the

charter capital;

+ Representative ownership: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital;
+ Ownership of related persons: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital.
- OQutstanding debts to the Company: None.
- Related benefits to the Company: None.

2.3. Changes in Board of Management: The Company has appointed Mr. Khuat
Trung Thang to the position of Deputy General Director effective from 01/11/2024.

2.4. Number of staffs and employee’s policies

As of December 31, 2024, the Company has 40 employees participating to social
insurance. All employees working at the Company have signed labor contracts
ensuring their full rights and benefits in accordance with labor laws and the Company’s
regulations. The Company’s social insurance policy is fully implemented by making
monthly contributions to the insurance authority. The Company also organizes annual
health check-ups for employees and provides financial support for medical treatment
for those suffering from illnesses, chronic conditions, or severe diseases.

Recognizing that human resources are the key to the its success, the Company
1s committed to implements policies that support and enable employees to enhance
their skills and expertise. It is committed to maintaining a positive work environment
that allows each individual to fully utilize their experience and potential.

The distribution of salaries and bonuses is closely linked to employees’
performance and the overall business results of the Company. The Company is
committed to continuously improving both the material and spiritual welfare of its
staff, as reflected in the improved benefits outlined in the Collective Labor
Agreement signed in 2024. In 2024, the Company conducted a selection process and
awarded the title of “Outstanding Employee” as a means of motivating employees,
encouraging dedication, and fostering long-term commitment to the Company.

The Company consistently supports and creates favorable conditions for the
Trade Union and the Youth Union, promoting cultural initiatives such as art flower-
arranging classes, baking workshops, sports activities, annual retreats, and regular

* According to the shareholder list provided by VSDC as of March 19, 2025.
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visits. These efforts aim to strengthen unity and mutual support among employees,
ensuring that the Company becomes a true and warm “home” for all its employees.

3. Investment activities, project implementation

As of December 31, 2024, the total investment capital in subsidiaries, joint
ventures, associates, and financial investments of the Company is VND 248.3 billion,
of which the total investment in subsidiaries is VND 241 billion in December 31,
2024 and was VND 248.6 billion in December 31, 2023. In line with the restructuring
strategy of its business sectors, the Company has divested its entire capital in the
subsidiary (NHT Global Trading Joint Stock Company) and in its associated
companies (Investment and Construction No4 Van Xuan Joint Stock Company and
Number 4.5 Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company) recovering a total
amount of over 11.5 billion VND.

The other investments in the Company’s subsidiaries have had high returns,
especially the shares in IKCONS Construction Joint Stock Company, which has
contributed a significant financial revenue to the Company. However, investments in
joint ventures, associates, and other financial investments made many years ago have
not only failed to show effective results but also carry a significant risk of capital loss.
In previous years, the Company had to set aside provisions for financial investments
amounting to VND 7.3 billion at Sahabak Joint Stock Company and at Investment
and Construction No. 4.2 Joint Stock Company.

4. Financial situation:

4.1. Financial situation

Indicator Year 2023 Year 2024 %
change
Total asset 1,639,686,761,461 1,825,302,133,218 11%
- 1,413,416,351,806 937,569,678,800 | -34%
Bl AR, 70,997,574,779 52,610,066.605 | -26%
activities
Other profit 342.937.889 (2,885,453,303) | -941%
Prostit before tax 71,340,512.668 49.724.613302 | -30%
Profit after tax 55,553,416,986 36,793,052.417 | -34%
Payout ratio 58% 87% | 51%

4.2, Major financial indicators:
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Indicators Year 2023 Year 2024 Note
1. Solvency ratio Slightly
-+ Current ratio 1.66 15] decreased
Short term Asset/Short term debt due to the
+ Quick ratio: 1.32 131 | increase in
(Short term asset - Inventories)/ Short term debt outstanding
loans
2. Captial structure ratio Increased
+ Debt/Total assets ratio 0.46 0.53 | duetothe
increase in
+ Debt/Owner’s Equity ratio 0.87 1.13 outstanding
loans.
3. Operation capability Ratio Improved
+ Inventory turnover 6.55 4.52 significantly
Cost of goods sold/Average inventory compared to
+ Total asset turnover 0.92 0.54 the previous
Net revenue/Average Total Assets year.
4. Profitability Equivalent
+ Profit after tax/Net revenue ratio 0.03 0.04 tlo o
slightly
+ Profit after tax/Total capital ratio 0.06 0.04 increased
+ Profit after tax/Total assets ratio 0.03 0.02 | compared to
+ Profit from business activities/Net 0.05 0.06 thie previous
; year.
revenue ratio
y' g

5. Shareholders structure, change in the owner’s equity

5.1. Share:

- Total number of shares: 64,000,000 shares;

- Type of shares: Freely transferable ordinary share.

5.2. Shareholders structure:

According to the shareholder list of the Company provided by the Vietnam
Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation as of March 19, 2025, the Company’s
shareholder structure is as follows:

N T Number of shares Par value of Ratio
i sy owned shares (VND) (%)
1 | State and other shareholders 64,000,000 | 640,000,000,000 | 100

1.1 | State shareholders 0 0 0

1.2 | Other shareholders 64,000,000 | 640,000,000,000 100
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" Number of shares Par value of | Ratio
o Tudicators owned shares (VND) (%)
5 Domestic and foreign 64,000,000 640,000,000,000 100
shareholders
2.2 | Domestic sharholders 64,000,000 | 640,000,000,000 | 100
2.3 | Foreign sharholders 0 0 0
G —
§ | eamtioratand Sdidinl 64,000,000 | 640,000,000,000 | 100
shareholders
3.1 | Institutional shareholders 46,400,000 | 464,001,000,000 | 72.5
3.2 | Individual shareholders 17,599,900 | 175,999.000,000 | 27.5
§ [l misarie 64,000,000 | 640,000,000,000 | 100
shareholders
4.1 | Major shareholders 59,200,000 | 592,000,000,000 | 92.5
Minority shareholders
4.2 | (Shareholders holding less than 4,800,000 48,000,000,000 7.5
5% of voting shares)
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5.3. Changes on the owner’s equity:

Completion Aditional Cpa;tir : .
Round time of the chal:ter ca.plta R B Issuing entity
— capital issuance method
(million VND) | (million VND)
s ; Business Registration Certificate No.0103010772 first issued by the
Intitial
sl et 45,000 Department of Planning and Investment on 09/02/2006.
- The GMS’s Resolution dated 27/11/2007, approving the plan to
- Initial issue additional common shares to increase charter capital.
issua:ance 04/2008 | 40,764.35 85,764.35 Public - The Certificate of registration for the public offering No. 278/UBCK-
Offering GCN issued by State Securities Commission (S SC”) on 29/01/2008,
with a total of 4,076,435 shares to be offered.
; - The Resolution of Annual GMS 2008 dated 29/4/2008 for
OHRE approval of the report on the results of the charter capital increase
shares to PP s P “
ey issuance.
- ial Letter No. 1549/UBCK dated J 1,2008, i
. 2nd 11/2008 4235.65 90,000 | personnel Official Le 'er 0 : 9/UBCK dated July 31, 2008, issued by the
1ssuarance ] SSC approving the issuance of 423,565 shares.
- Business Registration Certificate No. 0103010772 issued by the
employees g :
(ESOP) Department of Planning and Investment, first registered on
09/02/2006, and amended for the second time on 03/ 12/2008.
- The Resolution of GMS No.10 dated 05/02/2010 on approval of
the plan to issue additional common shares to increase charter
Offering capital.
| 3rd 03/2010 43,000 133,000 shares Fo - On 10/02{2(?10, the Company was approved by SSC to issue shares
1ssuarance strategic to strategic investors.
investors | - Business Registration Certificate No. 0103010772 issued by the

Department of Planning and Investment, first registered on
09/02/2006, and amended for the forth time on 06/4/2010.
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. Aditional Charter
Completion é
Round time of the Cha':ter ca.pltal after Tsance Issuing entity
ER—— capital issuance method
(million VND) | (million VND)
Offerin - The Resolution of GMS dated 26/10/2010 on approval of the plan
3 hari:r; tg to issue shares to increase the company's charter capital.
4th St ¥k Certificate of Registration for the Public Offering No. 40/GCN-
; 07/2011 27,000 160,000 P UBCK issued by the SSC on 14/03/2011.
issuarance shareholders . : : ; :
- Business Registration Certificate No. 0103010772 issued by the
and select . .
I Department of Planning and Investment, first registered on
PSR | 09/02/2006, and amended for the fifth time on 09/8/2011.
- The Resolution of GMS dated 15/10/2020 on approval of the plan
to issue shares through a private placement to increase the charter
Private capital.
- ial No. 6632/UBCK-QLCB dated 05/11/ 2020, i
o 12/2020| 160,000 | 320,000 | placement |~ Oticial Letier No. 6632/UBCK-QLCB dated 05/11/ 2020, issued by
issuarance —— the SSC.
¢ " |- Business Registration Certificate No. 0103010772 issued by the
Department of Planning and Investment, first registered on
09/02/2006, and amended for the 13th time 22/12/2020.
- The resolution No.01/NQ-DHDCD of Annual GMS dated
09/4/2022 on approval of the plan to issue shares to increase the
Offering company’s charter capital.
6th shares to |- Certificate of Registration for the Public Offering No. 220/GCN-
: 10/2022 20, 640, L :
emios wesl 200w Y0001 existing | UBCK issued by the SSC on 21/07/2022.
shareholders | - Business Registration Certificate No. 0103010772 issued by the

Department of Planning and Investment, first registered on
09/02/2006, and amended for the 17th time on 10/10/2022. ]
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5.4. Transaction of treasury stocks: None.

5.5. Other securities: None.

6. Environment — Social — Governance (ESG) Report of the Company

In addition to its business activities, the Company has also effectively fulfilled its
environmental and social responsibilities, as clearly demonstrated by its effective
management of the ICON4 Tower, which serves as the Company’s headquarters. With
the goal of continually enhancing the quality of services at the ICON4 Tower to meet
the increasingly high demands of customers, the Company has consistently focused on
improving building management services, thereby creating a friendly, safe, and
convenient working environment for over one hundred office tenants, thousands of
employees, and hundreds of visitors who regularly engage in transactions at the
building.

Safety and fire prevention are also top priorities for the Company. Each year, the
Company organizes practical and effective fire safety training for office tenants. The
close collaboration and regular, thorough inspections of fire safety measures in
partnership with the local fire authorities have provided peace of mind for both tenants
and employees working in the building. Additionally, the Company has paid special
attention to the management of wastewater treatment at the ICON4 Tower, recognizing
its direct impact on both customers and the community. The Company is committed to
strictly adhering to regulations concerning wastewater treatment.

Regarding the governance, the Company is committed to enhancing corporate
governance and investing in the development of a hi gh-quality workforce. With a strong
commitment to transparency and strict compliance with legal regulations, we ensure
complete trust from our partners and customers. All our operations are driven by the
goal of long-term, sustainable development, transparency, and strict compliance with
legal regulations.

The Company fully adheres to all legal regulations, including those related to
environmental protection. We encourage all employees to actively engage in
environmental protection activities, working alongside the community to build a
sustainable living environment. The Company’s document system is gradually being
digitized, minimizing the use of paper and traditional printing, thus contributing to
environmental preservation. Moreover, each employee serves as an active advocate,
raising awareness about environmental protection within the workplace and the
community.

In 2024, the number of fines and the total amount to be fined for failing to comply
with laws and regulations on the environment: None

The Company primarily uses electricity for operating machinery and lighting in
the workplace. We are committed to energy conservation, adhering to the National
Target Program for Energy Efficiency. Efficient electricity usage not only helps protect
the environment but also plays a key role in reducing production costs. Additionally, the
Company places a strong emphasis on the conservation of clean water in all daily
operations.

Page 18/54



In the coming period, the Company will continue to focus on reducing energy
consumption by turning off electrical devices when not in use, utilizing energy-efficient
lighting systems, and reviewing and maintaining machinery and electrical equipment to
ensure optimal performance and minimize energy waste.

[II. REPORT AND ASSESSMENTS OF THE BOARD OF MANAGERMENT
1. Assessment of the operating results

In 2024, the overall socio-economic situation remains challenging for the
construction industry and real estate investment and business sectors, particularly with
regard to institutional issues, legal regulations, and funding sources. This has partially
affected the implementation of construction plans for projects in 2024. The BOD, the
Board of Management, and all employees of the Company have implemented various
solutions to fulfill business objectives, focusing on key tasks and projects to optimize
business operations in 2024.

Compared to the 2024 plan approved by the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders, the Company achieved 78.0% of its revenue target, primarily due to the
Investor’s decision to adjust and extend the construction schedule for the project.
However, the consolidated after-tax profit reached 110.8% of the plan, thanks to
effective and timely solutions in managing cost of goods sold (such as strategic
investment in equipment), reducing warranty and management costs during the
construction process. Additionally, the Company has consistently ensured close
supervision and control over the operations of its subsidiaries. These subsidiaries have
performed highly efficiently and experienced significant growth in 2024, contributing
positively to the consolidated business results and exceeding profit targets set for the
year. (The Company’s business performance results in 2024 are detailed in Section L
Part II of this Report.)

The management of the ICON4 Tower has been carried out effectively, ensuring
security, safety, and the regular maintenance, servicing, and upgrading of systems and
equipment to enhance service quality for customers.

The project investment efforts in 2024 have shown positive developments and
achieved encouraging results. Specifically:

- Regarding the Southeast of To Huu Housing Project (Hanoi): The Company has
completed the digitization of the cadastral maps, determined the boundaries, and
conducted on-site marker installation. It has worked in coordination with Nam Tu Liem
District authority to carry out the land clearance process for the project; Completed the
approval of construction drawings and technical infrastructure estimates, as well as the
low-rise housing components, has been finalized. Additionally, the Company has
collaborated with consultants to prepare proposals for localized adjustments to the HH-
01 high-rise block.

- For the South Don Luong Urban Area Project (in Ha Nam): The Company has
completed the topographic survey at a scale of 1/500, as well as the policy for converting
rice fields within the project area. The detailed planning task at a scale of 1/500 has been
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approved, and the detailed planning proposal at a scale of 1/500 has been submitted to
the People's Committee of Duy Tien Town for appraisal,

- In addition, the Company has also been continuously researching and finalizing
the implementation plan for the project at 1283 Giai Phong (Hanoi), as well as exploring
investment opportunities in other provinces and cities (Ha Nam, Vinh Phuc, Hoa binh,
Bac Giang, Thanh Hoa...) in line with the overall direction of Taseco Group and Taseco
Land.

These efforts are important foundations for the Company to develop its investment
activities in 2025 and the following years.

The capital recovery settlement process at various projects has shown positive
progress, but many projects still face difficulties due to previous management and
governance methods. Specifically, there is a lack of legal documentation for projects
archived at the enterprises receiving the assignment, no cooperation from the
individuals/units accepting the assignments, and changes in the investor’s organizational
structure and management personnel.

2. Financial situation

2.1, Assets

Consolidated assets as of December 31, 2024, amounted to 1,825 billion VND, an
increase of 11% compared to the beginning of the year. Over the past year, the Company
continued to use cash flow from the capital increase in 2022 for its projects, which led
to a decrease in the balance of cash and cash equivalents compared to December 31,
2023. Meanwhile, the balances of receivables increased significantly, in line with the
Company’s business operations in 2024,

2.2. Debt payable

The total debt payable as of December 31, 2024, stood at 966 billion VND, an
increase of 27% compared to the beginning of the year, with a significant increase in
short-term liabilities. The addition of short-term loans enables the Company to ensure
cash flow for its business operations and use its capital more flexibly and effectively.
The Company remains proactive in maintaining a strong financial position. Although
short-term debt has increased significantly, the financial ratios remain at safe levels.

3. Improvement in organization structure, policies, and management

In 2024, the Company successfully completed the restructuring of its
organizational structure to ensure efficient operation, consisting of 5 (five)
departments/units. At the same time, the Company also finalized the appointment of
department heads and deputy heads, aiming to enhance work efficiency, optimize
resources, and meet the Company’s future development needs in a timely manner.

Accordingly, the Company has established a Projects Management Unit, with a
focus on tracking production output and revenue at each phase. In addition, the safety,
industrial hygiene, and fire prevention measures at the construction sites have been
strengthened and continuously maintained, ensuring a safe working environment. These
efforts have played a key role in enhancing the Company’s reputation in the construction
and installation industry.
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The Board of Management has been strengthened with a skilled professional to
enhance the Company’s operational efficiency. Specifically, in November 2024, Mr.
Khuat Trung Thang was appointed as Deputy General Director, effective from
November 1, 2024. He will be responsible for overseeing investments, supporting the
Company’s strategic direction for growth, as approved in Resolution No. 25/2024/NQ-
HDQT by the Board of Directors.

4. Development plans in future
a) Real Estate Projects

- Planning and setting specific goals for two projects assigned to be the investor:
the Southeast To Huu Housing Project at Trung Van Ward, Nam Tu Liem District,
Hanoi, and the Urban Development and Residential Renovation Project in the Southern
Area of Don Luong Neighborhood, Yen Bac Ward, Duy Tien Town, Ha Nam Province.

- For the 1283 Giai Phong Project, the Company will continue to review the legal
documents implementing the pilot resolution from the National Assembly in Quarter 2
0f2025. The Company will work with relevant Authority of Hanoi to include the project
in the pilot project list in Quarter 3 of 2025 and seek investment approval and investor
recognition by Quarter 4 of 2025.

- For other projects: The Company will research and prepare resources for
managing design work, approving estimates, and executing construction for the social
housing projects at Green Park Me Linh (Hanoi). Additionally, the Company will
continue to explore potential investment opportunities in the near future in Hoa Binh,
Vinh Phuc, Phu Quoc, and Ha Nam (Housing projects in Kim Bang and water plant
project). The Company will also closely monitor the progress of old apartment
renovation and social housing projects to identify investment opportunities in Hanoi and
Ha Long, Quang Ninh.

b) Construction and installation work, and management of ICON4 Tower

- Regarding construction and installation work: The Company will continue to
focus on executing according to the signed contracts and newly awarded tenders, with a
commitment to ensuring the quality and progress as agreed. The Company will make
efforts to proactively invest in equipment for construction and seek solutions to reduce
costs while improving efficiency during the construction process. The company aims to
achieve the following objectives:

+ Complete the construction of projects at the KN Paradise Project, targeting
revenue of over 380 billion VND.

+Finish the construction of technical infrastructure and approximately 50% of the

earthwork at the Dong Van I1I Supporting Industrial Park Project, with a revenue target
of over 730 billion VND.

+Carry out the construction of projects at Project No. 4, Nguyen Binh — Thanh
Hoa, Nam Thai — Thai Nguyen, and other projects, aiming for total revenue of around
350 billion VND.
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- The management and operation of the ICON4 Tower will continue to focus on
enhancing service quality and investing in the renovation of landscape features, lighting,
and the wastewater treatment system. The Company will ensure effective security and
safety measures, while maintaining the operation of building systems and equipment
(elevators, fire protection systems, sound systems, power stations, water supply,
lighting, security cameras, etc.) to improve service quality for tenants. Additionally, the
company will strive to meet revenue and profit targets as planned.

¢) The details of production and business targets for the year 2025 of the
Company are as follows:
=

2024 Result 2025 Plan
No. Indicator (billion VND) | (billion VND)
] Consolidated revenue 937.6 1,529.8
2 | Consolidated profit before tax 49.7 49.6
3 | Consolidated profit after tax 36.8 37'3J

IV. ASSESSMENTS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE
COMPANY’S OPERATION

1. Assessments of the Board of Directors on the Company’s operation

With assigned roles, responsibilities, and authority, the Board of Directors has
taken proactive steps in governance, effectively directing the Company’s development
in alignment with the strategy of the Taseco Group and the parent company. The
company has seen positive developments across its key areas of operation. Construction
and installation work has been consistently maintained and strengthened, while project
development has produced promising results. Financial management remains secure,
and building management has been continuously improved, driving higher economic
efficiency. Additionally, office operations and legal compliance have remained stable,
with strict adherence to legal regulations. These achievements serve as a solid
foundation, opening up prospects and creating a basis for the Company to continue
achieving new successes and maintaining stable growth in 2025.

With strong results in business operations for 2024, the Board of Directors has
proposed the approval of a 5% dividend payout for 2024 at the Annual General Meetin g
in 2025. This marks a significant milestone in the company’s robust development and
reflects the continuous efforts to recover and improve business performance following
the challenges faced in recent times.

2. Assessments of the Board of Directors on Board of Management’s
peformance

Through the Board of Directors meetings, progress reports, periodic reports, and
other reports of the General Director, the BOD has conducted comprehensive oversight
of the Board of Management’s activities across all areas of the company. The Board has
acknowledges that the Board of Management has:
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- Made remarkable efforts in fulfilling the tasks assigned for 2024, achieving
notable results. They have strictly adhered to current legal regulations and have
performed their duties and responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Law
on Enterprises, the Company’s Charter, and the other Company’s operational
regulations.

- Be further strengthened with the appointment of an additional Deputy General
Director who is responsible for the real estate business. This is one of the key strategic
moves in the Company’s plan for expansion and sustainable development.

- Made clear delegation and authorization of tasks to the Deputy General Director
and other managers of the company to take responsible for specific areas.

- Closely followed the plan of production and business, and the periodic meetings
to assess the progress of work and plan tasks for the next period, ensuring implement
effectively the resolutions of the BOD.

- Be decisive in debt recovery efforts and proactive in implementing project
activities to accelerate the progress of investment projects.

- Complied with and adhered to the information disclosure obligations as
required by law.

- Kept tracks of the regulations and guidelines from the parent company and
the group to effectively implement and adapt its business operations.

- Collaborated with the labor union to take care for employees’s well-being and
strengthen their connection with the company, thereby enhancing work efficiency.

3. Plans and orientations of the Board of Directors

- Organize and monitor the implementation of the production and business plan of
2025 of the Company with determination and efficiency from the early months of 2025.

- Direct the development of a financial plan to ensure sufficient funding for the
company’s projects.

- Focus on effective management of the Company’s key projects: the Southeast To
Huu Housing Project, the Don Luong New Urban Area project in Duy Tien (Ha Nam);
the investment plan for the 1283 Giai Phong project in Hanoi; and the Water Plant
project in Duy Tien (Ha Nam), among others.

- Seek investment, tenders, and auctions opportunities for potential projects that
have completed legal procedures in Hanoi and neighboring provinces such as Thai
Nguy, Bac Giang, Vinh Phuc, Hoa Binh, Thanh Hoa, etc., as well as directing the
exploration of other investment areas for the Company.

- Closely monitor the settlement and capital recovery for completed projects;
decide on solutions for recovering capital from large, long-delayed projects.

- Focus on the management, operation, maintenance, and repair of ICON4 Tower’s
equipment, as well as the renovation and upgrade of certain building components to
enhance service quality, meet customer needs, and increase revenue and service
efficiency.
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- Promote digital transformation: Directing the implementation of the digital
transformation roadmap, enhancing the application of technology in corporate
governance, project management, business operations, and post-investment management.

- Strengthen risk management and internal governance: Completing the risk
Mmanagement system, ensuring compliance with legal regulations, while enhancing
transparency and effectiveness in internal governance activities. Ensuring the
Company’s operations comply with legal requirements as well as market practices.

- Develop human resources: Focusing on building leadership and key personnel
teams, improving manageiment capabilities, and specializing the organizational structure.

V.

1.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Board of Directors

I.1. Members and structure of the Board of Directors

The Company’s BOD consists of three members as follows:

No. Name Position
1| Mr. Nguyen Tran Tung Chairman of BOD
2 | Mr. Nguyen Duc Lai Member of BOD, General Director
3 | Mr. Nguyen Duc Ha Member of BOD
4 | Mr. Dang Huy Khoi Independent Member of BOD
5 | Ms. Cao Thi Lan Huong Member of BOD, Internal Executives

(Information of Mr. Nguyen Duc Lai is as provided in Section 2, Part I1 of this Report)

a)

+ + +

Mr. Nguyen Tran Tung — Chairman of BOD

Name: NGUYEN TRAN TUNG.

Gender: Male.

Date of birth: 06/11/1974.

Place of birth: Quang Ninh.

Nationality: Vietnam.

Qualification: Master of Civil Engineering.

Current position in the Company: Chairman of BOD.

Current positions in other organizations:

Member of BOD, General Director — Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock
Company;

Chairman of BOD - Taseco Invest Joint Stock Company.

Legal violations: None.

Securities ownership of the individual and related persons in the Company:
Individual ownership: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital;
Representative ownership: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital;
Ownership of related persons: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital.
Outstanding debts to the Company: None.

Related benefits to the Company: None.

Page 24/54



b) Mr. Nguyen Duc Ha — Member of BOD
- Name: NGUYEN DUC HA.

Gender: Male.

Date of birth: 24/10/1976.

Place of birth: Ha Noi.

Nationality: Viet Nam.

Qualifications: Civil Engineering, Bachelor in Foreign Languages.

- Current position in the Company: Member of BOD.

Current positions in other organizations: Chairman of BOD, General Director —

IKCONS Construction Joint Stock Company.

-

-

Legal violations: None.
Securities ownership of the individual and related persons in the Company:
Individual ownership: 50,000 shares, accounting for 0.078125% % of the

charter capital;

+
-+

Representative ownership: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital;
Ownership of related persons: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital.
Outstanding debts to the Company: None.

Related benefits to the Company: None.

¢) Ms. Cao Thi Lan Huong — Member of BOD, Internal Executives

Name: CAO THI LAN HUONG.

Gender: Female.

Date of birth: 08/07/1976.

Place of birth: Quang Ninh.

Nationality: Vietnam.

Qualifications: Bachelor of International Economics.

Current position in the Company: Member of BOD, Internal Executives,
Current positions in other organizations:

Head of BOS — Taseco Group Joint Stock Company;

Deputy General Director — Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company;
Chairwoman of BOD, General Director — International Real FEstate

Management Joint Stock;

+
+
+
+

+
capital;

Vice Chairwoman of BOD — Alacarte Ha Long Joint Stock Company;
Chairwoman of BOD — Trang An Real Estate Joint Stock Company;
Representative of ICON4’s capital at Vietnam Packaging Corporation,
Representative of Taseco Land’s capital at ICON4.

Legal violations: None

Securities ownership of the individual and related persons in the Company:
Individual ownership: 100,000° shares, accounting for 0,15625% of the charter

# According to the shareholder list provided by VSDC as of March 19, 2025.
® According to the shareholder list provided by VSDC as of March 19, 2025.
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+ Representative ownership: 50% of the Taseco Land’s shares in ICON4;

+ Ownership of related persons: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital.

- Outstanding debts to the Company: None.

- Related benefits to the Company: None.

d) Mr. Dang Huy Khoi — Independent member of BOD

- Name: DANG HUY KHOI

- Gender: Male

- Date of birth: 05/05/1960

- Place of birth: Hai Duong

- Nationality: Vietnam

- Qualifications: Master of Business Administration, Bachelor of Economics in
Finance and Accounting.

- Current position in the Company: Independent Member of BOD

- Current positions in other organizations: Member of BOD — Taseco Air Services
Joint Stock Company.

Legal violations: None

- Securities ownership of the individual and related persons in the Company:
Individual ownership: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital;
Representative ownership: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital;
Ownership of related persons: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital.
- Outstanding debts to the Company: None.
- Related benefits to the Company: None.

1.2. The committees of BOD: None.
1.3. Activities of BOD

The BOD has duly exercised its functions and powers as outlined in Article 28 of
the Company’s Charter, managing the Company in accordance with the Company’s
regulations and legal provisions. The BOD successfully organized the Annual GMS for
2024 on May 15, 2024, and completed the process of obtaining shareholders’s written
opinion for approval the Contract and transactions between the Company and Taseco
Land Investment Joint Stock Company in November 2024,

The Board of Directors regularly holds quarterly meetings or convenes as needed
upon proposals from the General Direction to ensure timely and smooth execution of
business operations. This includes approving contracts with related parties, managing
debt collection, and addressing any issues or obstacles in project settlement, outstanding
debts, and other operational matters. The agenda for BOD meetings is thoroughly
prepared, comprehensive, and detailed. The meeting minutes are recorded clearly and
in full accordance with regulations.

The Board of Directors has diligently carried out reporting obligations to the State
Securities Commission, the Hanoi Stock Exchange, and relevant authorities in a
complete and timely manner.

+ + +
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In 2024, to promptly address matters within its authority, the BOD held 21 direct
meetings and conducted 5 written votes with full agreement from all members (100%
approval). The Board has effectively fulfilled its functions and responsibilities in
developing the company’s policies, strategies, and medium and long-term plans. The
resolutions and decisions of the Board are issued in accordance with the Company's
charter, the provisions of the Law on Enterprises, and the Law on Securities, primarily
focusing on the following key areas:

- The company’s production and business plans, implementation solutions,
presentation of the business plan to the GMS, and the execution of the annual business
plan as approved by the GMS.

- Human resources management and the restructuring of the Company’s
management system.

- Contracts and transactions with related parties, as well as other credit agreements.

- Divestment from companies in which the Company holds equity and the
termination of operations at the Company’s branches.

- Approval of the audit firm for the financial statements and decisions to handle
the Company’s finance.

- Approval of resolutions during the GMS of the subsidiaries.

Table 1. Meetings of BOD

PRI 5L Attendance | Reasons for
No. | BOD’ members Position meetings
attended rate absence
; Appointed
f
I | Nguyen Tran Tung Chagg;“ . 12/21 100% | from
15/05/2024.
Dismissed
hai
3 | Deo'Then Do | © a];“g;“ of 1 oom1 100% | from
15/05/2024.
. Member of 5
3 | Nguyen Duc Lai BOD 21721 100%
Cao Thi Lan Member of
4 21/21 100%
Huong BOD e
Member of
] 1)
5 | Nguyen Duc Ha BOD 21/21 00%
Member of
i 2 1009
6 | Dang Huy Khoi BOD 1/21 00%
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Table 2. Resolutions of BOD

No.

Resolution/Decision
No.

Date

Content

Approval
rate

01A/2024/NQ-
HDQT

09/01/2024

Regarding the approval of
productivity  bonuses  for
employees in 2023 and the
allocation of the Company's
reward and welfare fund for
2023.

100%

01/2024/NQ-HDQT

17/01/2024

Regarding the approval of the
policy for the auction of land
use rights for the project:
Complex of Hotel,
commercial services, and
seaside square in Quang Hung
commune, Sam Son city,
Thanh Hoa province.

100%

02/2024/NQ-HDQT

17/01/2024

Regarding the approval of the
policy to sign and excute
Contracts and transactions
between the Company and
affiliated persons.

100%

03/2024/NQ-HDQT

30/01/2024

Approval the plan to divest the
entire the Company’s
contributed capital in NHT
Global Trading Joint Stock
Company.

100%

04/2024/NQ-HDQT

30/01/2024

Approval the selection of the
unit to carry out the following
bidding packages:
Topographic survey,
preparation of the tasks and
detailed planning  project
1/500 and Cadastral survey at
South Don Luong New Urban
Area Project.

100%

05/2024/NQ-HDQT

29/02/2024

Approval the record date for
exercising the right to attend
the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders 2024.

100%
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No.

Resolution/Decision
No.

Date

Content

Approval _
rate

06/2024/NQ-HDQT

21/03/2024

Regarding the record date for
exercising the right to attend
the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders 2024 and the
extension of the date for
holding the Annual General
Meeting of  Shareholders
2024.

100%

07/2024/NQ-HDQT

27/03/2024

Regarding the signing the
Contract on Design
Consultancy to adjust the
exterior architectural design of
the exterior of the low-rise
housing units of the Southeast
Housing Group Project on To
Huu Street.

100%

7.1/2024/NQ-HDQT

27/03/2024

Approval the contents and
authorizing voting at the
Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders 2024 of
IKCONS Construction Joint
Stock Company.

100%

10

08/2024/NQ-HDQT

19/04/2024

Approval the convening of the
Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders 2024.

100%

11

09/2024/NQ-HDQT

09/05/2024

Approval the authorization to
attend, vote to approve the
contents and supplement the
content of the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders 2024
of  Vietnam Packaging
Corporation.

100%

12

10/2024/NQ-HDQT

15/05/2024

Regarding the election of the
Chairman of the Board of
Directors for the term 2020-
2025 and approval of the
signing of the Construction
Contract with Taseco Land

100%
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No.

Resolution/Decision
No.

Date

Content

Approval
rate

Investerment  Joint Stock
Company.

13

11/2024/NQ-HDQT

23/05/2024

Regarding the approval of the
signing of the Construction
Contract  with  IKCONS
Construction  Joint  Stock
Company.

100%

14

12/2024/Qb-HDQT

28/05/2024

Regarding the dismissal of the
position of Chief of Office.

100%

15

13/2024/NQ-HDQT

12/06/2024

Regarding the assignment of
duties to the members of the
Board of Directors for the
remainder of the 2020-2025

term.

100%

16

14/2024/NQ-HDQT

04/07/2024

Regarding the selection of the
auditing unit of the 2024
Financial Statements.

100%

17

15/2024/NQ-HDQT

01/08/2024

Regarding the approval of the
signing of the Construction
Contract for the technical
infrastructure construction
package — Phase 1 of the Dong
Van 1III Industrial Park
Infrastructure Investment and
Business Project at Cau Gie -
Ninh Binh Expressway.

100%

18

16/2024/NQ-HDQT

07/08/2024

Approval the plan to divest the
entire the Company’s
contributed capital in
Investment and Construction
NO4 Van Xuan Joint Stock
Company

100%

19

17/2024/NQ-HDQT

07/08/2024

Regarding the extension of the
credit limit period under the
Credit Contract No.
01/2023/913/HDTD at the
Joint Stock Commercial Bank
For Investment And

100%
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Resolution/Decision
No.

Date

Content

Approval
rate

Development Of Vietnam,
Transaction Office Branch 1.

20

18/2024/NQ-HDQT

04/09/2024

Regarding the signing of the
Technical Infrastructure
Construction Contract - Phase
I of the Dong Van III
Industrial Park Construction
Investment Project with TVT
Prosperity Joint Stock
Company.

100%

21

19/2024/NQ-HDQT

04/09/2024

Regarding the approval of the
Company’s  organizational
structure, personnel structure,
evaluation criteria and income
framework, and monthly
income  adjustment  for
employees.

100%

22

20/2024/NQ-HDQT

17/09/2024

Regarding the finalization of
the list of shareholders to
exercise the right to receive
dividends in 2023 in cash.

100%

23

21/2024/NQ-HDQT

08/10/2024

Regarding the termination of
the operations of Company’s
Branch

100%

24

22/2024/NQ-HDQT

08/10/2024

Regarding the issuance of the
Regulations on
Representatives  of  the
Investment and Construction
Joint Stock Company No4 at
Enterprises ~ with  capital
contribution of ICON4,

100%

25

23/2024/NQ-HDQT

08/10/2024

Regarding the colection of
shareholders’ written
comments to approve issues
under the authority of the
General Meeting of
Shareholders.

100%

Page 31/54




No.

Resolution/Decision
No.

Date

Content

Approval
rate

26

24/2024/NQ-HDQT

25/10/2024

Regarding the approval of the
contents and matters related to
collecting shareholders’
written comments to approve
issues under the authority of
the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

100%

27

25/2024/NQ-HDQT

01/11/2024

Regarding the receipt and
appointment of the position of
Deputy General Director of
the Company.

100%

28

26/2024/NQ-HDQT

01/11/2024

Regarding the approval of the
appointment policy for the
Chief of Office of the
Company.

100%

29

27/2024/NQ-HDQT

11/11/2024

Regarding the approval of the
credit limit for the period
2024-2025 at the Joint Stock
Commercial Bank For
Investment And Development
Of Vietnam, Transaction
Office Branch 1.

100%

30

28/2024/NQ-HDQT

25/11/2024

Approval the plan to divest the
entire the Company’s
contributed capital in Number
4.5 Investment and
Construction Joint  Stock
Company

100%

31

28.1/2024/NQ-
HDQT

06/12/2024

Regarding the approval of
voting and authorization to
vote in the form of written
comments to approve the
contents at the Extraordinary
General Meeting of
Shareholders 2024 of
IKCONS Construction Joint
Stock Company.

100%
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No. Resolution/Decision Date Coiitenit Approval
No. rate
Regarding the approval of
matters under the authority of
32 | 29/2024/ NQ-HDQT | 26/12/2024 5 .
Q Q the Board of Directors of the 100
Company.

1.4. Activities of the Independent member of BOD:

In the course of his duties, the independent member of the Board of Directors, with

a high sense of responsibility, has:
- Participated fully in the Board of Directors’ meetings as required;

- Carried out supervisory duties through reports and proposal from the General
Director, and provided evaluations and solutions on matters submitted by the General

Director, especially concerning the Company’s financal matters;

- Participated in voting on the agenda, plans, content, and materials for the

Company’s General Meeting of Shareholders.

2. Board of Supervisors

2.1. Structure and members of BOS

The Company’s BOS consists of three members as follows:

No. Name Position
1 | Ms. Tran Thi Loan Head of BOS
2 | Mr. Do Le Nam Member of BOS
3 | Mr. Dang Xuan Hien Member of BOS

a) Ms. Tran Thi Loan - Head of BOS

+ + + + o+ o+

Name: TRAN THI LOAN.

Gender: Female.

Date of birth: 22/10/1974.

Pale of Birth: Hung Yen.

Nationality: Vietnam.

Qualifications: Bachelor of Economics.

Current position in the Company: Head of BOS.

Current positions in other organizations:

Member of BOD, Chief Accountant - Taseco Group Joint Stock Company;
Head of BOS — Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company;
Chairwoman of BOD — Taseco Danang Air Services Joint Stock Company:
Member of BOD — AAL Joint Stock Company;

Head of BOS — Taseco Air Services Joint Stock Company:

Chairwoman of BOD — Alacarte Ha Long Joint Stock Company;
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+ + o+

Chairwoman of the Members’Council — Taseco Oceanview Danang One
Member Company.

Legal violations: None

Securities ownership of the individual and related persons in the Company:
Individual ownership: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital;
Representative ownership: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital;
Ownership of related persons: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital.
Outstanding debts to the Company: None.

Related benefits to the Company: None.

b) Mr. Dang Xuan Hien — Member of BOS

+ + +

Name: DANG XUAN HIEN.

Gender: Male.

Date of birth: 12/03/1973.

Place of birth: Thai Binh.

Nationality: Vietnam.

Qualiications: Bachelor of Laws.

Current position in the Company: Member of BOS

Current positions in other organizations:

Member of BOS — Taseco Group Joint Stock Company;

Member of BOS — Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company;
Member of BOD — Vietnam Construction and Technology Development Joint

Stock Company;

+ + o+

1

Legal violations: None

Securities ownership of the individual and related persons in the Company:
Individual ownership: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital;
Representative ownership: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital;
Ownership of related persons: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital.
Outstanding debts to the Company: None.

Related benefits to the Company: None.

¢) Mr. Do Le Nam — Member of BOS

Name: DO LE NAM.
Gender: Male.

Date of birth: 15/10/1978.
Place of birth: Thanh Hoa.

- Nationality: Vietnam.

Qualifications: Mase of Laws.
Current position in the Company: Member of BOS
Current positions in other organizations: Member of BOD - International

Ecological Travel Investment Joint Stock.

-+

Legal violations: None
Securities ownership of the individual and related persons in the Company:
Individual ownership: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital;
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+ Representative ownership: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital;

+ Ownership of related persons: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital.
Outstanding debts to the Company: None.,

- Related benefits to the Company: None.

2.2, Activities of BOS

The Supervisory Board has assigned specific tasks to each member. The members
regularly monitor and supervise the activities of the BOD and the General Director in
managing and operating the Company’s business activities, as well as the
implementation of resolutions issued by the GMS and the BOD in 2024.

In 2024, the BOS held two official meetings. In addition, they consistently
exchanges information with the BOD and participates in meetings, and provides timely
feedback on the decisions and policies set by the BOD, Furthermore, the BOS has
closely coordinated with the Company’s financial monitoring and financial reporting
processes to ensure transparency, accurate reflection, and compliance with Group and
legal regulations, safeguarding the interests of shareholders and others.

3. Transactions, remunerations and benefits of the BOD, Board of
Management and BOS

3.1. Salary, rewards, remuneration and benefits of BOD, BOS, and Board of
Management

a) Salary, rewards, remuneration and benefits of BOD

" Remuneration Note
No. Member Position (VND)
) i fr
I | Nguyen Tran Tung Chairman 37,500,000 Apl;g:;zgz 40111
Dico
2 | Dao Tien Duong Chairman 22,500,000 ‘S’]";Ei;g 2&40m
. Independent
3 | Dang Huy Khoi Member 36,000,000
4 | Nguyen Duc Lai Member 36,000,000
Member,
5 | Cao Thi Lan Huong Internal 36,000,000
Executives
6 | Nguyen Duc Ha Member 36,000,000
Total 204,000,000
b) Salary, rewards, remuneration and benefits of BOS
Remuneration Note
No. Member Position
(VND)
1 | Tran Thi Loan Head of BOS 36,000,000 |‘
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No. Member Position Ren;:;:];:;mn Hate
2 | Do Le Nam Member of 24,000,000
BOS
3 | Dang Xuan Hien Member of 15,000,000 | Appointed from
BOS 15/5/2024
Vu Thi Khanh Ha Member of 9,000,000 | Dismissed from
BOS 15/5/2024
Total 84,000,000
¢) Salary, rewards, remuneration and benefits of Board of Management
No. Name Position Remuneration Note
(VND)
I | Nguyen Duc Lai General Director 893,062,500
2 Deputy
Nguyen Song Ha Gevessl Dissotie 644,100,000
Depu :
3 eputy Appointed from
Khuat Trung Thang Gleneril Disetsi 137,933,333 01/11/2024
| B T K Chief Accountant | 582,876,088
Trang
Total 2,257,971,921

3.2. Share transactions by internal shareholders

In 2024, there were no share transactions involving the Company’s internal

shareholders.
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3.3. Agreements and transactions with internal persons

* Transactions between the Company and its

persons and affiliated persons.

affiliated persons or between the Company and its major shareholders, internal

Resolution No. or

VND

Name of Relation dolg::lg':ilm ¢ Time of Decision No.
S ship with transaction approved by Content, quantity, total
No. 0};53??3“:.“ the ENO" dT;E:Z f Htdeess with the GMSs/BOD value of transaction Note
i Company ss“ei’sfu = Company | (if any, specifying
e date of issue)
0104079036 | Floor 1, NO2-T1 i
iacued by Bl Supply material and
. installati
Taseco Land Department Diplomatic 10/2023/NO i‘ln;;?-inam'zz cz; ?;?;iﬁz
1 Investment Major of Planning Complex, Xuan 5 v
: g 03/01/2024 HDQT dated NO1-T6, T7 Project -
Joint Stock | shareholder and Tao Street, Xuan 19/04/2003 Chribeat: Aysenilin
Company Investment of | Tao Ward, Bac Tu Value: PI; 247 7'7 268
Hanoi on Liem District, VND ’ P
29/07/2009. Hanoi, Vietnam. '
0104079036 Floor 1, NO2-T1 Completion of apartment
; Building, construction and
. Diplomatic HaIA I installation of MEP
Taseco Land Department HDQT dated i
. Complex, Xuan systems  within  the
4 Investment Major of Planning 13/03/2023 :
: Tk Gie | et i Tao Street, Xuan In 2024 02/2024/NQ apartment for Project
Tao Ward, Bac Tu NOI1-T6&T7 - Contract
Company Investment of : G oo HDQT dated _
: Liem District, Appendix.
Hanoi on I 17/01/2024 _
29/07/2009 Hanoi, Vietnam. Value: (27,226,710,970)

Page 37/54




0104079036 | Floor 1, NO2-T1 Supply and installation
issued by Building, of kitchen cabinets, shoe
Taseco Land Department Diplomatic 16/2023/NQ- cabinets, vanity cabinets,
Investment Major of Planning Complex, Xuan mirrors  for  Project
: 05/01/2024 HDQT dated
Joint Stock | shareholder and Tao Street, Xuan 23/06/2023 NOIT6 - Contract
Company Investment of | Tao Ward, Bac Tu Appendix.
Hanoi on Liem District, Value: 353.847.616
29/07/2009. Hanoi, Vietnam. VND
0104079036 | Floor 1, NO2-T1
issued by Building, Supply and planting of
Taseco Land Department Diplomatic new landscape trees -
Investment Major of Planning Complex, Xuan ISEDEN Project No. 4 Thanh Hoa
. In 2024 HDQT dated .
Joint Stock | shareholder and Tao Street, Xuan 17/01/2024 - Contract Appendix.
Company Investment of | Tao Ward, Bac Tu Value:  2,856,017,073
Hanoi on Liem District, VND
29/07/2009. Hanoi, Vietnam.
0104079036 | Floor 1, NO2-T1
issued by Building, 56/2022/NQ- Construction of technical
Taseco Land Department Diplomatic HDQT dated infrastructure for Project
Investment Major of Planning Complex, Xuan 12/03/2024 21/10/2022 No. 4 Thanh Hoa -
Joint Stock | shareholder and Tao Street, Xuan 02/2024/NQ- | Contract Appendix.
Company Investment of | Tao Ward, Bac Tu HDQT dated Value:  7,071,422.805
Hanoi on Liem District, 17/01/2024 VND
29/07/20009. Hanoi, Vietnam.,
Taseco Land | yiger | 0104079036 F“?"‘;ulisl ;‘h?z'“ 202023/NQ- | Installation of washbasin
Investment | shareholder | 155u€d bY : & 15/03/2024 | HDQT dated | stones, kitchen
Department Diplomatic 28/07/2023 | countertops for NOIT6 -
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Joint Stock of Planning Complex, Xuan Project NO1-T6, T7 -
Company and Tao Street, Xuan Contract Appendix.
Investment of | Tao Ward, Bac Tu Value: 152,087,760
Hanoi on Liem District, VND
29/07/2009. Hanoi, Vietnam.
0104079036 | Floor 1, NO2-T1 Sl Bt lanti of
issued by Building, 26/2023/NQ- i s
v : new shade trees along the
Taseco Land Department Diplomatic HDQT dated ,
_ , street - Nguyen Binh
Investment Major of Planning Complex, Xuan In 2024 24/08/2023 Peisingt = Cruskened gl
Joint Stock | shareholder and Tao Street, Xuan 02/2024/NQ- Co;tract P
Company Investment of | Tao Ward, Bac Tu HDQT dated ppendix.
; : oo , Value:  9.452,692.856
Hanoi on Liem District, 17/01/2024 VND
29/07/2009. Hanoi, Vietnam.
0104079036 Floor 1, NO2-T1
issued by Building, Supply and installation
Taseco Land Department Diplomatic of PHC centrifugal piles
, 02/2024/NQ- ; :
Investment Major of Planning Complex, Xuan for Nam Thai - Thai
" In 2024 HDQT dated :
Joint Stock | shareholder and Tao Street, Xuan 17/01/2024 Nguyen Project.
Company Investment of | Tao Ward, Bac Tu Value:  4,325,939,706
Hanoi on Liem District, VND
29/07/20089. Hanoi, Vietnam,
0104079036 | Floor 1, NO2-T1 Construction of medium
L . o
Taseco Land | issued by E?ulldmg., 02/2024/NQ- v.oltgge, low voltage, fmd
Investment Major Department Diplomatic In 2024 HDQT dated lighting electrical
Joint Stock | sharcholder | of Planning Complex, Xuan 17/01/2024 systems for Project No. 4
Company and Tao Street, Xuan Thanh Hoa - Contract

Investment of

Tao Ward, Bac Tu

Appendix.
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Hanoi on Liem District, Value: 455,153,908
29/07/2009. Hanoi, Vietnam. VND
0%04079036 Floor 1', T?IOz-Tl T — of
issued by Building,
Taseco Land Department Diplomatic SHUCRONT Works  andl
In.vestment Maj osglannin Complex Xuan TOROL I i
10. . ajor £ PE% In 2024 HDQT dated | townhouses - Nam Thai -
Joint Stock | shareholder and Tao Street, Xuan ) :
o Investment of | Tao Ward. Bac T 15/05/2024 Thai Nguyen Project.
pany BSH i e Value: 205,098,189,868
Hanoi on Liem District, VND
29/07/20009. Hanoi, Vietnam.
-T1
0]. TR0 | Elpan 1.’ }.102 k Construction of technical
issued by Building, ;
Taseco Land Department Diplomatic SNy B DY
N | i i 02/2024/NQ- | Thai - Thai Nguyen
11. | Investment Major of Planning Complex, Xuan :
: In 2024 HDQT dated Project - Contract and
Joint Stock | shareholder and Tao Street, Xuan '
17/01/2024 Contract Appendix.
Company Investment of | Tao Ward, Bac Tu
. . E Value: 13,989,539,304
Hanoi on Liem District, VND
29/07/2009. Hanoi, Vietnam.
0104079036 Floor 1, NO2-T1 Construction of medium
issued by Building, voltage underground
Taseco Land Departm.ent Diplomatic 02/2024/NQ.- cable and 560F(VA
12. | Investment Major of Planning Complex, Xuan 26/06/2024 | HDOT dated transformer substation -
Joint Stock | shareholder and Tao Street, Xuan 17/01/2024 35/0.4KV for Nam Thai -
Company Investment of | Tao Ward, Bac Tu Thai Nguyen Project.
Hanoi on Liem District, Value:  3,029,844.852
29/07/2009. Hanoi, Vietnam. VND
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0104079036 Floor 1., b:TOZ-Tl 15/2024/NQ-HDQT .Constructlon of technical
issued by Building, infrastructure - Phase 1
. : dated 1/8/2024;
Taseco Land Department Diplomatic for Dong Van III
, i Second | 02/2024/NQ-HDQT : .
13. | Investment Major of Planning Complex, Xuan Industrial Park Project -
‘ half of | dated 17/01/2024;
Joint Stock | shareholder and Tao Street, Xuan 2024 02/2024/NO Contract and Contract
Company Investment of | Tao Ward, Bac Tu Appendix.
; : L DHDPCD  dated
Hanoi on Liem District, 06/11/2024 Value: 853,936,351,918
29/07/2009. Hanoi, Vietnam. VND
0104079036 | Floor 1, NO2-T1 Construction of
issued by Building, foundations, basement,
Taseco Land Department Diplomatic and structural shell -
: 02/2024/NQ- ] s
14, | Investment Major of Planning Complex, Xuan High Complex building
: . 08/11/2024 HDQT dated . :
Joint Stock | shareholder and Tao Street, Xuan 17/01/2024 for Nam Thai Project -
Company Investment of | Tao Ward, Bac Tu Contract.
Hanoi on Liem District, Value: 75,266,495,807
29/07/2009. Hanoi, Vietnam. VND
0104079036 | Floor 1, NO2-T1
issued by Building, Supply and installation of
Taseco Land Departm'ent Diplomatic 02/2024/NQ- lighting and  camera
15. | Investment Major of Planning Complex, Xuan 25/12/2024 HDOT dated systems - Dong Van III
Joint Stock | shareholder and Tao Street, Xuan 17@1;’2023 Industrial Park Project.
Company Investment of | Tao Ward, Bac Tu Value:  15,937,581,600
Hanoi on Liem District, VND
29/07/2009. Hanoi, Vietnam.
0104079036 | Floor 1, NO2-TI 20/2024/NQ- _
' s P fdivi
e | | omeity | Bing | o | poraseg | Pomtotdvideds o
> Department Diplomatic 17/09/2024 ¥ '
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Joint Stock of Planning Complex, Xuan Value:  23,200,000,000
Company and Tao Street, Xuan VND
Investment of | Tao Ward, Bac Tu
Hanoi on Liem District,
29/07/2009. Hanoi, Vietnam.
01352183‘314;56 PO B NI Construction of technical
IKCONS D yt Tower, 243A De in frasstructu: Of Th 131
Constructio . PANMENt |y, Thanh Street, | 58/2022/NQ- e
17. : Affiliated | of Planning First half Hoa Project No. 4 -
n Joint Lang Thuong HDQT dated .
persons and of 2024 Contract Appendix.
Stock Ward, Dong Da 21/10/2022
Investment of " T , Value:  6,936,729,038
Company : District, Hanoi
Hanoi on City. Vietn VIND
06/12/2021 1 Yk,
0 15518;4; o6 Floor 7, ICON4 Construction of structure
IKCONS D artmeit Tower, 243A De and  completion of
Constructio . cpartm La Thanh Street, | Second 11/2024/NQ- | exterior  work  for
18. . Affiliated | of Planning - )
n Joint - and Lang Thuong half of HDQT ngay commercial townhouses
Stock Pe investment o | Ward: Dong Da 2024 23/05/2024 | in the Nam Thai Project.
Company 5 -e & District, Hanoi Value: 184,723,208,502
S City, Vietnam VND
06/12/2021 RL ' ’
IKCONS 0¥09844756 Floor 7, ICON4 s
: issued by Payment of dividends for
Constructio ) Tower, 243A De 5
19. ; Affiliated | Department the year 2023 in cash
n Joint . La Thanh Street, | 28/06/2024
persons of Planning Value: 2,550,000,000
Stock - Lang Thuong VND
&
ompany R—— Ward, Dong Da

Page 42/54

e




Hanoi on

District, Hanoi

06/12/2021 City, Vietnam.
Uifiiﬁ " || Fioor7, 1cONS Construction of technical
IKCONS Doartmene | TOWeT 243A De | (;rns mf ::“ © lf; ‘C?I
Constructio | DA La Thanh Street, | Second | 02/2024/NQ. | 'Mrastructure - Phase
20. : Affiliated | of Planning for Dong Van III
n Joint e il Lang Thuong half of HDQT dated Industrial Park Project
tock ] .
. Investment of | o Dong Da b 17012024 | G ve: 123,969.265.595
Company : District, Hanoi
Hanoi on Pl Viistsiain VND
06/12/2021 v, '
1 £
0 isosigeifl‘;b Al Floor 7, ICON4
IKCONS y Tower, 243 A De Advance payment of
Constructio Depatimont La Thanh Street dividends for th
) Affiliated | of Planning : sl SSE T
21. n Joint - o Lang Thuong | 20/11/2024 2024 in cash.
Stock pets Ward, Dong Da Value:  10,200,000,000
Investment of B .
Company ; District, Hanoi VND.
RO City, Vietnam
06/12/2021 y )
0105?18;4; 50 Floor 7, ICON4
IKCONS szamﬂ;n Tower, 243A De
Constructi : , ) /NQ- A
i o .ctlo Affiliated | of Planning v, Thadh Seect ——— Office leasing.
n Joint ons and Lang Thuong 18/11/2024 HDQT dated Value: 48.600.000 VND
Stock pers Ward, Dong Da 17/01/2024 TR ‘
Investment of ks .
Company } District, Hanoi
HlOL City, Vietnam
06/12/2021 4 '
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0401571699

Taseo : issued b
. Affiliated Y 200 Vo Nguyen :
Oceanview Department ' Room rental services at
persons ; Giap Street, Phuoc . 02/2024/NQ-
23 | Danang One of Planning First half A la carte Da Nang
: of My Ward, Son Tra HDQT dated
VIBEREE | ] and District, Da Nang | °f 2024 17/01/2024 | Hotel:
Limited Investment of | . 2 ~0 Nang Value: 39,600,000 VND.
persons City, Vietnam
Company Da Nang on
24/12/2013
0100107349
issued by .
12 iai Phon .
. Department ke s Payment of dividends for
Vietnam . ; Street, Hoang Liet .
24 . Affiliated | of Planning ; the year 2023 in cash.
| Packaging Ward, Hoang Mai | 11/11/2024
. persons and g : Value: 5,850,000,000
Corporation District, Hanoi
Investment of : : VND.
. City, Vietnam.
Hanoi on
04/04/2005
or 1, NO2-T1
0107356520 | Froor LN
; Building,
issued by i .
Taseco Department Biplamnstie Buildin operation
: , o Complex, Xuan 02/2024/NQ- £ P
75 Group Joint | Affiliated | of Planning management services.
: Tao Street, Xuan In 2024 HDQT dated
Stock persons and Value: 548.058.090
Tao Ward, Bac Tu 17/01/2024
Company Investment of ) < s VND/month
. Liem District,
Hanoi on Hanoi City
15/03/2016 . *
Vietnam.
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001066006139
™ | 238AKimMa
Street, Kim Ma, Ba 20/2024/NQ- Payment of dividends for
26. | NgwenDuc| Intemal |Departmenton | ™ " District, | In2024 | HDQT dated | the year 2023
Lt posan, (SOEAREHE | City, 17/09/2024 | Value: 90,000,000 VND.
anagement of ———
Social Order on
10/07/2021
001071015001
issued by F907, Hei Tower,
gl * | Nguy Nhu 20/2024/NQ- | Payment of dividends for
27, Nguyen Internal | Departmenton | Kon Tum, Thanh
Song Ha persons |Administrative Xuan Trung, In 2024 ket na e yefar A3,
Management of | Thanh Xusn, Ha 17/09/2024 Value: 24,000,000 VND.
Social Order on Noi
16/04/2021
002176000685 P512, N4AB
1ssued by Building, Trung
. olies | HomRianiChioh 20/2024/NQ- | Payment of dividends for
28. | Cao ThiLan | Internal |Departmenton | New Urban Area,
Huong persons |Administrative | Nhan Chinh Ward la.dle HDQT dated | the year 2023.
’ 17/09/2024 Value: 50,000,000 VND.
Management of Thanh Xuan
Social Orderon | District, Hanoi
01/05/2021 City, Vietnam,
001076027503 Building A - 20/2024/NQ- Payment of dividends for
29. | NguyenDuc | Internal Police Capitaland n2024 | HDQT dated | the year 2023,
— P |Department on | Residence - Hoang 17/09/2024 | Value: 25,000,000 VND.
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Administrative | Thanh, Mo Lao,
Management of | Ha Dong, Hanoi.
Social Order
29/04/2021
01?1;2303875 P2608, CT12B
lsPolicey Building, Kim Van
) Kim Lu 20/2024/NQ- Payment of dividends for
Ph D
30. Kieﬁ“};f eme! Aepafy:;z:;:: Apartment, Dai | In2024 | HDQT dated | the year 2023.
5 Kim Ward, Hoang 17/09/2024 Value: 9,999,500 VND.
Management of e y
. Mai District, Hanoi
Social Order on City. Vietn
16/02/2023 i FIEUB
00! 178022775 N03-T2 Building,
e by Diplomatic
Doan Thi Major D Z-c:[l:et o Complex, Xuan 20/2024/NQ- tIJ?ymet;t;Z?wdends o
31| Phuong | sharehold | JcParmenton | o Ward, Bac Tu | In 2024 HDQT dated v
Administrative . = Value:  6,400,000,000
Thao ers Liem District, 17/09/2024
Management of Hanoi Ci VND.
Social Order on V'etnamry,
10/07/2021 femna.
001078016275 | °0° Hoang Sam
e Apartment, Hoang
Affiliated Po(]:jcey Sam Street, Nghia 20/2024/NQ- Payment of dividends for
32. | Ngo Sy Duc —— Do Ward, Cau In 2024 HDQT dated | the year 2023,
DSOS |ICPORUMANEOR | s Diistrive 17/09/2024 | Value: 15,000,000 VND.
Administrative -
T Hanoi City,
- s Vietnam.
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Social Order on
16/04/2021.

* Transaction between internal persons of the Company, affiliated persons of internal persons and the Company’s subsidiaries in
which the Company takes controlling power.

Positi Name of
. Legal —_
- — Relations | on at dtaaioni subsidiarie,
No. o 3 hip with | the Address companies Time of Content, quantity, total Note
organization/ | . No./, . . 1
o internal | Comp . which the | transaction value of transaction
individual .| date of issue,
persons |any (if : Company
place of issue
any) control
Floor 1, NO2-T1 | IKCONS
0} 04(3:19: o Building, Construction Construction and
Taseco Land D SSU en{ of Diplomatic Joint Stock completion of 02 LKA-1
1 Investment Major Pe;p —— Complex, Xuan | Company In 2024 and LKA-GM2M units -
' Joint Stock | sharcholder Investmint of Tao Street, Xuan Nguyen Binh Project.
Company , Tao Ward, Bac Tu Value: 8,696,687,525
MAIBLON | Ty VND
29/07/2009 Sy '
Hanoi, Vietnam
0104079036 | Floor 1, NO2-T1 | IKCONS Construction of
Taseco Land . Lo :
_ issued by Building, Construction underground 22kV power
Investment Major . : . . ;
2. Joint Stock | shareholder Department of Diplomatic Joint Stock | In2024 |lines, relocation of Xuan
Compan Planning and | Complex, Xuan | Company Lam - Nguyen Binh 8
e Investment of | Tao Street, Xuan Resettlement  Substation
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Positi Legal Name of
Nameof |Relations| onat |  °%f i, subsidiarie,
No. . hip with | the : Address companies | Time of Content, quantity, total Note
organization/ | | No./, g R 2
Fouii internal | Comp . which the | transaction value of transaction
individual .| date of issue,
persons |any (if . Company
place of issue
any) control
Hanoi on Tao Ward, Bac Tu along the 473E9.37 route -
29/07/2009 Liem District, Nguyen Binh Project.
Hanoi, Vietnam Value: 2,680,424,136 VND.
0104079036 | Floor 1, NO2-T1 | IKCONS
issued by B‘ulldmg_, Corllstmctmn Construction of landscaping
Taseco Land Department of Diplomatic Joint Stock y
, infrastructure for the green
Investment Major Planning and | Complex, Xuan Company : ;
3. ) In 2024  |park - Nguyen Binh Project
Joint Stock | shareholder Investment of | Tao Street, Xuan :
_ - Contract and Appendices.
Company Hanoi on | Tao Ward, Bac Tu Value: 7.948 163.567 VND
29/07/2009 | Liem District, R ;
Hanoi, Vietnam
0104079036 | Floor 1, NO2-T1 | IKCONS
issued by B.ulldmg., Cor}structlon Coniieticn oF ihe culiupdl
Taseco Land Department of Diplomatic Joint Stock kovse - Newven Binh
4 Investment Major Planning and | Complex, Xuan | Company 02024 |Proiect ) e Chiitiadt
' Joint Stock | shareholder Investment of | Tao Street, Xuan Ap]ien dix
Company Hanoion | Tao Ward, Bac Tu :
; s vV : . !
29/07/2009 | Liem District, Aluss 14,687,093 VD)
Hanoi, Vietnam
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Positi Legal Name of
Name of Relations | on at docug - subsidiarie,

No. aiailations hip with | the N:; Address companies | Time of Content, quantity, total Note
'g .. internal | Comp o which the | transaction value of transaction
individual .| date of issue,

persons |any (if = Company
place of issue
any) control
0104079036 | Floor 1, NO2-T1 | IKCONS
; i1di , . _
issued by E’:unl mg., Corllstructmn Supply and installation of
Taseco Land Department of Diplomatic Joint Stock : : 5
_ lightning protection system
Investment Major Planning and | Complex, Xuan | Company ) :
A . In 2024  |for the project - Project No.
Joint Stock | sharcholder Investment of | Tao Street, Xuan .
s 4 - Contract Appendix.
Company Hanoi on | Tao Ward, Bac Tu Value: 498 330,425 VND
29/07/2009 | Liem District, R TR '
Hanoi, Vietnam
0104079036 | Floor 1, NO2-T1 | IKCONS
issued by Building, Construction Low-voltage electrical
Taseco Land Department of Diplomatic Joint Stock installation and lighting
6 Investment Major Planning and | Complex, Xuan | Company In 2004 works - Nguyen Binh
' Joint Stock | shareholder Investment of | Tao Street, Xuan Project.
Company Hanoi on Tao Ward, Bac Tu Value: 6,102,098,133
29/07/2009 Liem District, VND.
Hanoi, Vietnam
0104079036 | Floor 1, NO2-T1 | IKCONS Supply and installation of
Taseco Land . o s . ;
, issued by Building, Construction doors, aluminum-glass
Investment Major ; . : )
7. Joint Stock | shareholder Department of Diplomatic Joint Stock | In2024 |walls, construction of
Compan Planning and | Complex, Xuan | Company structures and  external
Py Investment of | Tao Street, Xuan finishes Phase I - Phase II,
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Positi Leoal Name of
Nama st Relations | on at doculgnent subsidiarie,

No. organization/ hip with | the No./ Address companies | Time of Content, quantity, total Note
.g s internal | Comp ) which the | transaction value of transaction
individual .| date of issue,

persons |any (if , Company
place of issue
any) control
Hanoion | Tao Ward, Bac Tu installation ~ of  railings,
29/07/2009 Liem District, canopy roofs, skylights,
Hanoi, Vietnam trellis, gates, and fences -
Project No. 4 - Contract
Appendix.
Value: 6,947,602,144 VND.
0104079036 | Floor 1, NO2-T1 | IKCONS
issued by I%uﬂdmg Copstructmn Technical T ——
Taseco Land Department of Diplomatic Joint Stock ; :
] construction - Nguyen Binh
g Investment Major Planning and | Complex, Xuan | Company In2024  |Project ) =
' Joint Stock | shareholder Investment of | Tao Street, Xuan Adindin
Company Hanoi on | Tao Ward, Bac Tu '
29/07/2009 | Liem District. Valpe: 2,219,760,285 VND.
Hanoi, Vietham
0104079036 | Floor 1, NO2-T1 | IKCONS
issued by Building, Construction Electrical installation,
Taseco Land : s ¢ .
P - Department of Diplomatic Joint Stock transformer  station -
9 . e Planning and | Complex, Xuan | Company | Nim 2024 Nguyen Binh Project -
Joint Stock | shareholder :
e Investment of | Tao Street, Xuan Contract Appendix.
e Hanoion | Tao Ward, Bac Tu Value: 260,030,754 VND.
29/07/2009
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Positi Ll Name of
Name of Relations | on at st subsidiarie,
No. . hip with | the Address companies | Time of Content, quantity, total Note
organization/ | | No./, : ; .
individdal internal CO!I'I!J' ditie o lume, which the | transaction value of transaction
persons |any (if y Company
place of issue
any) control
Liem District,
Hanoi, Vietnam
0104079036 | Floor 1, NO2-T1 | IKCONS
issued by Building, Construction
Taseco Land Department of Diplomatic Joint Stock Construction and repair of
10 Investment Major Planning and | Complex, Xuan | Company Niim 2024 the base and floors - ALC
' Joint Stock | shareholder Investment of | Tao Street, Xuan Ha Long Project — Contract.
Company Hanoi on Tao Ward, Bac Tu Value: 425,042,435 VND.
29/07/2009 Liem District,
Hanoi, Vietnam
0104079036 | Floor 1, NO2-T1 | IKCONS
issued by Building, Construction
Taseco Land Department of Diplomatic Joint Stock Container rental for office
T Investment Major Planning and | Complex, Xuan | Company Niim 2024 use - Dong Van III
) Joint Stock | shareholder Investment of | Tao Street, Xuan Industrial Park Project.
Company Hanoi on Tao Ward, Bac Tu Value: 97,200,000 VND
29/07/2009 Liem District,
Hanoi, Vietnam
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Positi Name of
p Legal -
Name of Relations | on at At subsidiarie,

No. orpanization/ hip with | the No ien Address companies | Time of Content, quantity, total Note
.g .. internal | Comp i which the | transaction value of transaction
individual .| date of issue,

persons |any (if \ Company
place of issue
any) control
Tasec? Affiliated 04.101571699 200 Vo Nguyen IKCON§
Oceanview | person of 1ssued by Giap Street Construction
DahnqangbOne internal D:gfm@t Phuoc My Ward, ngt Sk Room rental service at A la
12. L.en.]t Zr LR 0 a?l x € | SonTraDistrict, | “O™PAY | 19054 |carte Hotel Da Nang.
A Da Nang City, Value: 66,995,000 VND.
Company Investment of Vi
letnam.
Da Nang
24/12/2013
001076027503 Tower A - IKCONS
issued by | Capitaland Hoang |Construction
Police Thanh Apartment, | Joint Stock
Nenye Do | Thismat [ Department on | Mo Lao Ward, Ha | Company Payment of dividends for
13. g“ila ercon | ofBOp |Administrative|  Dong District, 28/06/2024 |the year 2023 in cash,
IS o
P Management Hanoi City, Value: 200,000,000 VND.
of Social Vietnam.
Order on
29/04/2021
001076027503 Tower A - IKCONS Advance  payment of
14 Nguyen Duc | Internal |Member| issuedby | Capitaland Hoang |Construction 20/11/2024 dividends for the year 2024
' Ha person |of BOD Police Thanh Apartment, | Joint Stock ' in cash.
Department on | Mo Lao Ward, Ha Company Value: 800,000,000 VND.
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Positi Name of
: Legal Gk
Name of Relations | on at Aokt subsidiarie,
No. - hip with | the Address companies | Time of Content, quantity, total Note
organization/ | | No./, : 2 :
g internal | Comp : which the | transaction value of transaction
individual .| date of issue,
persons |any (if ; Company
place of issue
any) control
Administrative| Dong District,
Management Hanoi City,
of Social Vietnam.
Order on
29/04/2021
0107372459 ACSYV Cargo IKCONS
issued Terminal, Noi Bai |Constructi
‘ Affiliated issued by : 01.15 ction
AAL Joint erson of Department of |  International Joint Stock Traiigport Cafiliact
15. Stock | P Planning and |  Airport, Phu | Company | 26/06/2024 P :
internal : Value: 81,000,000 VND.
Company Investment of | Minh Commune,
pRReR Hanoi on Soc Son District,
28/03/2016. | Hanoi, Vietnam.
0101619879 | NO2-T1 Building, Amount
issued by Diplomatic paid
. . e
Taseco Group Afﬁhatz;l- I;:p , - Zf 'I‘S:a OH;[;:: :; f{um; Vietnam Loan transaction. ‘:Eng
ua ;
16. Joint Stock p-erson anning an 0 . Packaging In 2024 Value: 132,200,000,000 'e
Compan internal Investment of | Tao Ward, Bac . VD period:
PAY | person Hanoion | TuLiem District, | P : 4,200,00
24/02/2005 Hanoi City, 0,000
Vietnam. VND
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3.4. Assessing the implementation off regulations on corporate governance

The Company has developed and issued governance documents in accordance with
regulations for large public companies, including: the Governance Regulations, the
Regulations on the Operation of the Board of Directors, the Regulations on the
Operations of the Board of Supervisors, and the Information Disclosure Regulations.
The BOD, the BOS, and the General Director have strictly complied with and
responsibly implemented the contents approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders, with the aim of ensuring the Company’s sustainable and transparent
development. However, risk management, financial management, and human resources
management at the Company need to be strengthened and enhanced in 2025 and in the
following years.

The Company regularly provides operational information to shareholders and
investors through its website, enabling shareholders to access information and monitor
the implementation of resolutions and decisions made by the General Meeting of
Shareholders, as well as the effectiveness of the Board of Directors® activities.

VL. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Auditor’s opinions

The financial statements accurately and fairly reflects, in all material respects, the
financial situation of the Company as of December 31, 2024, as well as its business
performance and cash flows for the fiscal year ending on that date. It is in compliance
with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the current Vietnamese Accounting Regime for
Enterprise, and relevant legal regulations governing the preparation and presentation of
financial statements.

2. Audited financial statements

(The detailed audited financial report for 2024 is attached to this Report)g~

Recipients: LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE
- 88C; _GENERAL DIRECTOR

- BOD, BOS (to report); \

- Website of the Company; 3 A

- Archive: Office.

- Nguyen Duc Lai
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INVESTMENT AND CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK COMPANY NO4
No. 243A De La Thanh Street, Lang Thuong Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS

The Board of General Directors of Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company No4 presents this
report together with The Corporation’s audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31%, 2024.

THE CORPORATION

Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company No. 4 (hereinafter referred to as the "the Corporation"} is
a Joint Stock Company equitized from Construction Company No. 4 under Hanoi Construction Corporation
- JSC. The Company's plan was approved by the Ministry of Construction in Decision No. 2075/QD-BXD
dated December 26, 2005. The company operates production and business according to Business
Registration Certificate No. 0103010772 issued by Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment on
February 9, 2006, registered for changes several times, registered for changes for the second time. 4 dated
April 6, 2010 on converting business code 0103010772 to business code 0100105574, registering instead
changed for the 13th time on December 22, 2020 and registered for the 17th change on October 10, 2022 on
increasing charter capital.

The abbreviated: [CON4,

Charter capital according to the 17th change of Business Registration dated October 10, 2022 is: VND
640,000,000,000 (In words: Six hundred and forty billion VND).

The Corporation’s registered office is located at: No. 243A De La Thanh Street, Lang Thuong Ward,
Dong Da District, Hanoi City, Vietnam.

The Company's shares are being traded on UpCOM with code CC4.
BOARDS OF MANAGEMENT, SUPERVISORS AND GENERAL DIRECTORS

Members of Boards of Management, Supervisors and General Directors who held the Corporation during the
year and at the date of this report are as follows:

Board of Management

Mr. Nguyen Tran Tung
Mr. Dao Tien Duong
Ms. Cao Thi Lan Huong
Mr. Nguyen Duc Ha
Mr. Nguyen Duc Lai
Mr. Dang Huy Khoi

Board of Supervisors
Ms. Tran Thi Loan

Mr. Do Le Nam

Mr. Dang Xuan Hien
Ms. Vu Thi Khanh Ha

Board of General Directors

Mr. Nguyen Duc Lai
Mr. Nguyen Song Ha
Mr. Khuat Trung Thang

Chairman (Appointed on May 15, 2024)
Chairman (Resigned on May 15, 2024)
Non-executive member

Non-executive member

Member

I[ndependent member

Head of the Board
Member

Member (Appointed on May 15, 2024)
Member (Resigned on May 15, 2024)

General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director (Appointed on November 1, 2024)

Sl

e



f

\

|
\

."-/

7

i

B4

P e

13 . o 4
=/ CONG TY \-f\

| DAUTUVA RA
ar

INVESTMENT AND CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK COMPANY NO4
No. 243A De La Thanh Street, Lang Thuong Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

According to the opinion of the Board of General Directors, in terms of material aspects, in addition to the
events arising in section 7.1 - Events arising after the end of the accounting period, there are no unusual
events occurring after the end of the accounting period. Closing the accounting books affects the financial
situation and operations of the Company and requires adjustment or presentation on the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2024.

AUDITORS

Consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024 are audited by CPA
VIETNAM Auditing Company Limited - Member of INPACT International Auditin g Firm

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS

The Corporation’s Board of General Directors is responsible for preparing the consolidated financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the financial position of The Corporation as at 31/12/2024 as
well as of its income and cash flows statements for the year then ended, complying with Vietnamese
Standards on Accounting, Vietnamese Accounting System and relevant regulations in preparation and
disclosure of consolidated financial statements. In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
Board of General Directors is required to: ;

* Select appropriate accounting policies and apply them consistently;
e Make judgments and estimates prudently;

¢ State clearly whether the Accounting Standards applied to The Corporation are followed or not, and all
the material differences from these standards are disclosed and explained in the consolidated financial
statements;

® Design and effectively implement the internal control system in order to ensure that the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated Financial Statements are free from material misstatements due to frauds
Or errors;

© Prepare the consclidated financial statements of The Corporation on the going-concern basis, except for
the cases that the going-concern assumption is considered inappropriate.

The Board of General Directors is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept, which
disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of The Corporation and to ensure that
the consolidated financial statements comply with Vietnamese Standards on Accounting, Vietnamese
Accounting System and relevant legal regulations in preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements. The Board of General Directors is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of The
Corporation and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of frauds and other
irregularities.

The Board of General Directors confirms that The Corporation has complied with the above requirements in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.

\h\alf of the Board of General Directors;Q/
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General Director
Ha Noi, 20" March, 2025



CPAVIETNAM

CPA VIETNAM AUDITING COMPANY LIMITED

Head Office in Hanoi: A ANVA
8" floor, VG Building, No. 235 Nguyen Trai Str, Y/ \/\/\
Thanh Xuan Dist., Hanoi, Vietnam I N P A C T

B +84(24) 3783 2121 @ info@cpavietnam.vn : =
= +84 (24) 3783 2122 www_cpavietnam.vn

No: 17172025/BCKT-CPA VIETNAM-NV2

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT

To: Shareholders
Boards of Managements, Supervisors and General Directors
Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company No.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Investment and Construction Joint
Stock Company No.4 prepared on March 20, 2025, from page 06 to page 44, including the consolidated
balance sheet as at December 31, 2024, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated cash flow
statement for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 and the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Responsibility of the Board of General Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Company's
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese
Enterprise Accounting System and relevant legal regulations on the preparation and presentation of
consolidated financial statements and is responsible for internal control that the Board of Directors
determines is necessary to ensure the preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Responsibility of Auditors

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. These Standards require us to comply with
the Standards and codes of ethics, to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the Company's financial statements are there any significant errors or not.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The audit procedures are selected based on the auditor's Judgment, including the
assessment of risks of material misstatement in the financial statements due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design appropriate audit procedures to the actual
situation, which is not intended to give an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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CPAVIETNAM

Qualified opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view. in all material
respects, of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated results of
operations and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and the relevant statutory
requirements applicable to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

Nguyen Thi Mai Hoa Nguyen Thi Tien

Deputy General Director Auditor

Audit Practising Registration Certificate: Audit Practising Registration Certificate:
No. 2326-2023-137-1 No. 5276-2021-137-1

Authorised: 08/2025/UQ-CPA VIETNAM dated 02/01/2025 of Chairman,

For and on behalf of

CPA VIETNAM AUDITING COMPANY LIMITED
A member firm of INPACT
Ha Noi, 20" March, 2025
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INVESTMENT AND CONSTRUCTION

JOINT STOCK COMPANY NO4

No. 243A De La Thanh Street, Lang Thuong Ward,

Dong Da District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

Form B (1 - DN/HN

Issued under Circular 202/2014/TT- BTC

22nd December 2014 of Ministry of Finance

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS

A CURRENT ASSETS
(100=100+120+130+140+150)

I. Cash and cash equivalents

1

2

Cash

Cash and cash equivalents
II. Short - term investments
3. Held to maturity investment

II1. Short- term receivables

Short-term receivables from customers

1
2.  Short-term repayments to suppliers
5.  Short-term loan receivable

6.  Other short-term receivables

7. Provision for doubtful debis

IV. Inventories

Inventories

Short-term prepaid expenses
VAT deductible

Tax and amount receivables
from State budget
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

1
V. Other current assets
1
2

(200=210+2204230+240+250+260)

I. Long-term receivables
Long-term loan receivable

6.  Other long-term receivables
II. Fixed assets
1. Tangible fixed assets

- Historical Cost

- Accumulated depreciation
3. Intangible fixed assets

- Historical Cost

- Aeccumulated amortization
ITI. Investment real estate
Historical Cost
Accumulated amortization

Construction in progress
Long-term financial investments
Other long-term investments

X 30§

. Gvestmests

V1. Other Long-term assets

1. Long-term prepaid expenses
2. Deferred income tax assets |
4. Commercial advantage

TOTAL ASSETS (270 = 100+200)

. Long-term Construction in progress

Provision for impairment of long-term financial

Code
100

110
111
112
120
123
130
131
132
135
136
137
140
141

150
151
152

153

200

210
215
216
220
221
222
223
227
228
229
230
231
232
240
242
250
253

254

260
261
262
268

270

As at December 31, 2024

Note -

5.1

5.2

53
5.4
5.5
5.6

5.7

5.8

5.18

55
5.6

59

5.11

512
5.13

5.8
5.14
5.15

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VIND
1,250,096,757,446 1,045,416,766,501
95,449,174,123 97,638,279,134

35,314,803,735
60,134,370,388
24,800,000,000
24,800,000,000
967,065,024,782
581,170,079,787
215,943,419,822
124,700,000,000
49,663,724,183
(4,412,199,010)
161,269,615,893
161,269,615,893
1,512,942,648
690,988,376
821,483,160

471,112

575,205,375,772

153,714,764,757
128,000,000,000
25,714,764,757
113,337,397,345
100,178,332,252
154,893,218,392
(54,714,886,140)
13,159,065,093
23,216,137,460
(10,057,072,367)
142,637,403,496
226,935,142,429
(84,297,738,933)
104,293,282,925
104,293,282,925
616,100,000
6,116,100,000

(5,500,000,000)

60,606,427,249
5,841,062,429
2,469,443,510
52,295,921,310

43,806,541,265
53,831,737,869
38,800,000,000
38,800,000,000
687,821,979,513
493 644,855,892
98,607,448,466
53,200,000,000
45,689,264,636
(3,319,589,481)
216,912,784,999
216,912,784,999
4,243,722,855
1,321,360,404
21,302,132

2,901,060,319

594,269,994,960

152,476,968,870
128,000,000,000
24,476,968,870
116,621,277,981
102,748,719,372
149,961,342,703
(47,212,623,331)
13,872,558,609
23,216,137,460
(9,343,578,851)
150,215,810,380
226,935,142,429
(76,719,332,049)
97,651,107,606
97,651,107,606
4,616,100,000
11,196,100,000

(6,580,000,000)

72,688,730,123
11,150,299,697

2,636,708,530
58,901,721,896

1,825,302,133,218

1,639,686,761,461
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INVESTMENT AND CONSTRUCTION
JOINT STOCK COMPANY NO4

No. 243A De La Thanh Street, Lang Thuong Ward,

Dong Da District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

Form B 01 - DN/HN

Issued under Circular 202/2014/TT- BTC

22nd December 2014 of Ministry of Finance

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

As at December 31%, 2024

RESOURCES Code Note
C- LIABILITIES (300=310+330) 300
I.  Current liabilities 310
1. Trade account payables 311 516
2. Advances from customers 312 517
3. Taxes and other payables to State budget 313 5.18
4. Payables to employees 314
5. Short-term accrued expenses 315 5.19
8. Short-term unearned revenue 318 5.20
9.  Other short-term payables 319 5.21
10. Short-term loans and liabilities 320 5.22
12. Bonus and welfare funds 322
II. Long-term liabilities 330
6. Long-term unearned revenue 336 5.20
7.  Other long-term payables 337 5.21
8. Lon_g—ter.m ]??I:I‘OWi.[lgS and finance 138 592
leasing liabilities
12. Long-term payables provision 342 5.22
D- OWNERS' EQUITY 400
(400 = 410)
I- Owners’ equity 410 5.23
1. Contributed capital 411
- Ordinary shares with voting rights 4lla
2. Capital surplus 412
10. Undistributed profit after tax 421
Undistributed profit after tax brought
; 421a
forward
Undistributed profit after tax for the current 421b
year
13. Non-controlling interest 429
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS® EQUITY 440
(440 = 300+400)
Preparer Chief Accountant
] :
1§/_
Be Thi Tra Pham Thi Kieu Trang

7

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
966,588,463,741  761,879,000,469
828,264,497,692  629,168,702,344 .
331,518,608,449  283.023,594,010 >
212,874,131,154 29,516,672,332
17,622,295,018 18,034,852,937
6,882,190,683 6,685,898.241
9,386,449,589 33,183,640,628
7,885,428,633 7,749,182,197
54,740,128.823 42,859,041,556
184,750,926,091 205,622,481,191
2.604,339.252 2,493,339,252
138,323,966,049  132,710,298,125
120,538,125,000 127,234,687.500
1,339,160,000 1,469,790,000
2,562,906,989 4,005,820,625
13,883,774,060 ;
858,713,669,477  877,807,760,992
858,713,669,477  877,807,760,992
640,000,000,000  640,000,000,000
640,000,000,000  640,000,000,000
38.420,729.455 38,420,729 455

57,810,952,424

38,945,410,376

18,865,542,048

122,481,987,598

70,945,410,376

37,698,291,599

33247,118,777

128,441,621,161

1,825,302,133,218

1,639,686,761,461

Ha Noi, March 20" 2025
General Director

Jf—

moN
f

&, C(JNG Ty
/ C{'JPHAN

\EAU TU W in‘f DUN

3

o4l



INVESTMENT AND CONSTRUCTION

JOINT STOCK COMPANY NO4 Form B 02 - DN/HN.
No. 243A De La Thanh Street, Lang Thuong Ward, Issued under Circular 202/2014/TT- BTC
Dong Da District, Hanoi City, Vietnam 22nd December 2014 of Ministry of Finance

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31* December 2024

In 2024 In 2023
ITEMS Code Note VND VND
1. Revenues from sales and services rendered 01 6.1 037,569,678,800 1,413,416,351,806
2. Revenue deductions 02 - -
. :
5 Net revenues from sales and services rendered 10 937,569,678,800  1,413,416,351.806
(10 = 01-02)
4. Costs of goods sold 11 6.2 854,929,662,532  1,311,232,606,099
Gross revenues from sales
5 sind services yendessd (30 = 10.1) 20 82,640,016,268 102,163,745,707
Financial income 21 6.3 20,577,226,873 25,886,520,302
Financial expenses 22 6.4 9,405,232,370 16,398,166,204
In which: interest expenses 23 8992918813 10,045,469 315
Profit or loss in joint ventures
3. . 24 . :
and associates
9. Selling expenses 25 6.5 245 850,000 -
10. General administrative expenses 26 6.5 40,956,094,166 40,654,525,026
11. Net profits from operating activities 30 52,610,066,605 70,997,574,779
{30 = 20+(21-22)+24-(25+26)}
12. Other income 31 6.6 434,252 544 823,778,361
13. Other expenses 32 6.6 3,319,705,847 480,840,472
14. Other profits (40 = 31-32) 40 6.6 (2,885,453,303) 342,937,889
Total net profit before tax
15, (50 = 30+40) 50 49,724,613,302 71,340,512,668
16. Current corporate income tax expenses 51 6.7 12,764,295 865 15,148,690,816
17. Deferred corporate inconie tax expenses 52 6.8 167,265,020 638,404,866
Profits after corporate income tax -
18. (60 = 50-51-52) 60 36,793,052,417 55,553,416,986
19. Profit after tax of the parent company 61 19,544,152 048 34,127,027.406
20 Profit after tax of shareholders uncontrollable 62 17,248,900,369 21,426,389,580
21. Basic earnings per share 70 6.9 295 519
Ha Noi, March 20", 2025
Preparer Chief Accountant ’6:51@‘_‘_[}”3 Eggl Director
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INVESTMENT AND CONSTRUCTION
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No. 243A De La Thanh Street, Lang Thuong Ward,
Dong Da District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

Form B 03 - DN/HN

Issued under Circular 202/2014/TT- BTC

22nd December 2014 of Ministry of Finance
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Indirect method)

For the year ended 31* December 2024

ITEMS

Net cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for

- Depreciation of fixed assets and investment properties
- Provisions

- Gains (losses) on investing activities

- Interest expenses

Operating profit before changes in working capital
- Increase (decrease) in receivables

- Increase (decrease) in inventories

- Increase (decrease) in payables

- (Increase) decrease prepaid expenses

- Interest paid

- Corporate income tax paid

- Other payments on operating activities

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Expenditures on purchase and construction of fixed
assets and long-term assets

Expenditures on leans and purchase of debt instruments
from other entities

Proceeds from lending or repurchase of debt instruments
from other entities

Expenditures on equity investments in other entities
Proceeds from equity investment in other entities

Proceeds from interests, dividends
and distributed profits

Net cashflow from investing activities

. Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuing shares, receiving capital
contributions from owners

Proceeds from borrowings

Payment to settle debts

Dividends and profits paid to the owner

Net cashflow from financing activities
Net cashflow during the period (50 = 20+30+40)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

The impact of changes in Foreign exchange rates

Cash and cash equivalenis at end of year
(70 = 50+60+61)

Code Note

01

02

03
05
06

08

09
10
11
12
14
15
17
20

21

23

24

25
26

27

30

50
60

61

70

51

In 2024 In 2023
VND VND
49,724,613,302 71,340,512,668
18,256,649,324 35,257,095,822
13,883,774,060 2,087,433 ,461
(12,304,731,396)  (20,551,551,320)
8,992,918,813 10,045,469,315
78,553,224,103 98,178,959,946
(226,292,814,831)  (184,647,913,002)
55,643,169,106  (33,562,971,519)
209,341,280,355 21,935,078,433
12,545,108,554 1,281,534,124
(8,992,918,813)  (10,045,469,315)
(15,071,865,595)  (11,182,593,036)
(720,000,000) e
105,005,182,879  (118,043,374,369)
(14,640,767,573)  (20,563,915,740)
(82,053,790,333)  (44.836,960,479)
24,553,790,333 61,036,960,479
- (58,544,487,561)
6,279,624,679 7,712,500,000
10,160,717,800 12,021,698,529
(55,700,425,094)  (43,174,204,772)
. 625,000,000
275,024,178,639  434,405,789,501
(288,554,162,935)  (279,996,026,744)
(37,963,878,500)  (15,918,104,720)
(51,493,862,796)  139,116,658,037
(2,189,105011)  (22,100,921,104)
97,638,279,134  119,739,200,238
95,449,174,123 97,638,279,134
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JOINT STOCK COMPANY NO4 Form B 03 - DN/HN

No. 243A De La Thanh Street, Lang Thuong Ward, Issued under Circular 202/2014/TT- BTC
Dong Da District, Hanoi City, Vietmam 22nd December 2014 of Ministry of Finance

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Indirect method)
For the year ended 31% December 2024

Ha Noi, March 20", 2025
Preparer Chief Accountant General Director
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INVESTMENT AND CONSTRUCTION
JOINT STOCK COMPANY NO4 Form B 09 - DN/HN
No. 243A De La Thanh Street, Lang Thuong Ward, Issued under Circular 202/2014/TT- BTC

Dong Da District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

22nd December 2014 of Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31%, 2024

1.

1.1.

1.2.

1.3

COMPANY INFORMATION

Form of equity ownership

Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company No. 4 was equitized from Construction Company
No. 4 under Hanoi Construction Corporation. The company's equitization plan was approved by the
Ministry of Construction under Decision No. 2075/QD-BXD dated December 26, 2005. It operates its
business activities according to Business Registration Certificate No. 0103010772 issued by the Hanoi
Department of Planning and Investment on February 9, 2006, with several amendments. The 4th
amendment on April 6, 2010, transitioned the enterprise code from 0103010772 to 0100105574, The
13th amendment was on December 22, 2020, and the 17th amendment on October 10, 2022, regarding
an increase in charter capital.

English Name: Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company No4.

Abbreviation: [CON4.

Charter Capital as per the 17" amendment on October 10, 2022: VND 640,000,000,000 (In words:
Six hundred and forty billion VND).

The company’s shares are currently traded on the UpCOM exchange under the ticker symbol CC4.

The Corporation’s registered office is located at: No. 243A De La Thanh Street, Lang Thuong
Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi City, Viet Nam

Number of employees as of December 31, 2024: 133 employees (96 employees as of December 31, 2023).

Operating industries and principal activities

Production of construction materials; agency and brokerage for construction materials, equipment,
and interior and exterior furniture; production of electrical equipment and household appliances;

Installation of electrical panels, power systems, and industrial machinery and equipment;

Repair, maintenance, and warranty services for machinery, mechanical, electrical, and electronic
equipment;

Trading in fuel for engines and motorbikes; trading in liquefied petroleum gas (LPG); bottling and
refilling of LPG cylinders;

Freight services via waterways and road transportation;
Exploitation and processing of forestry and agricultural products;

Tourism organization services, hotel lodging services, food and beverage services, and recreational
sports and entertainment services.

Real estate business;

Construction of other civil engineering works;

Exploitation and trading of construction sand and building materials;

Trading in electrical and mechanical equipment, machinery processing, and IT-related equipment;

Other recreational activities not classified elsewhere. Details: Operation of recreational services
(excluding bars, karaoke venues, and dance halls);

Landscaping and maintenance services.

Primary business activities in the year: Civil construction, services, and real estate trading.

Normal operating cycle

The company’s usual business cycle is 12 months.
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INVESTMENT AND CONSTRUCTION
JOINT STOCK COMPANY NO4

No. 243A De La Thanh Street, Lang Thuong Ward,

Dong Da District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

Form B 09 - DN/HN

Issued under Circular 202/2014/TT- BTC22nd
December 2014 of Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended December 31, 2024

1.4. The Corporation structure

As at 31/12/2024, the Corporation has subsidiaries, associates and dependent units as follows:

Dependent units:

Name

Construction Enterprise No. |

Construction and Mechanization

Enterprise

Foundation Treatment and
Construction Enterprise

Consulting and Construction

Enterprise
Capital Enterprise

Company Branch in Bac Ninh (i)

Company Branch in Hung Yen

Company  Branch
Nguyven (ii)

in

Thai

Construction Branch No. 4 (iii)

Address
Ha Noi
Ha Noi
Ha Noi
Ha Noi
Ha Noi
Bac Ninh
Hung Yen
Thai

Nguyen
Da Nang

Main Business Activities

Investment in construction
projects

Investment in construction
projects

Investment in construction
projects

Investment in construction
projects

Investment in construction
projects

Investment in construction
projects
Investment in construction
projects
Investment in construction
projects

Investment in construction
projects

Status

Ceased operations
Ceased operations
Ceased operations
Ceased operations
Ceased operations
Ceased operations, tax
code termination
Ceased operations
Ceased operations, tax

code terminated

Ceased operations, tax
code terminated

(i) On December 18, 2024, the company received a notification from the Bac Ninh Department of
Planning and Investment regarding the termination of the Bac Ninh branch;

(1) On January 12, 2024, the company received a notification from the Thai Nguyen Department of
Planning and Investment regarding the termination of the Thai Nguyen branch:

(i) On January 22, 2024, the Company received notice from the Da Nang Department of Planning and
Investment regarding the termination of operations of Construction Company No. 4 Branch.

Subsidiaries and Associates:

Name

Subsidiaries

IKCONS Construction
Joint Stock Company
Vietnam  Packaging
Corporation

Associates

Investment and
Construction No. 4.2
Joint Stock Company

Voting
Equity Benefit Ratio
Location  Main Activity Ownership ratio ratio
Ha Noi Construction 51% 51% 51%
Ha Noi Real estate 66,27%  66,27% 66,27%
business

HaNpi Comstruction 0%  30% 30%

mvestment
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INVESTMENT AND CONSTRUCTION
JOINT STOCK COMPANY NO4 Form B 09 - DN/HN
No. 243A De La Thanh Street, Lang Thuong Ward, Issued under Circular 202/2014/TT- BTC22nd

Dong Da District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

December 2014 of Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended December 31%, 2024

%

3.2

FISCAL YEAR AND ACCOUNTING CURRENCY

Fiscal year

Fiscal year of the Company starts on 1™ January and ends on 31% December of solar year.
Accounting currency

The accompanying financial statements are expressed in Vietnam Dong (VND).
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM

Accounting System

The Corporation applied to Vietnamese Accounting System promulgated under Circular No.
200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22nd December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance and Circular No.
53/2016/TT- BTC dated March 21st, 2016 amending and supplementing a number of articles of
Circular 200/2014/TT- BTC dated December 22nd, 2014.

Statements for the compliance with Accounting Standards and System

The Board of General Directors confirms full compliance with current Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for Enterprises, and relevant legal regulations in
preparing and presenting the consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ending December
31,2024.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Below are the major accounting policies adopted by the Corporation in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Basis for Preparing Consolidated Financial Statements -

The Corporation's consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Circular
202/2014/TT-BTC dated December 22nd, 2014 of the Ministry of Finance on guiding methods of
preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements, specifically:

The consolidated financial statements include the consolidated financial statements of the Company
and the financial statements of the entities controlled by the Company (subsidiaries) for the fiscal
year ending December 31, 2024. Control is achieved when the Company has the ability to govern
the financial and operating policies of the investees to derive benefits from their activities.

The results of operations of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the acquisition date to the disposal date.

When necessary, the financial statements of subsidiaries are adjusted to ensure uniformity in
accounting policies applied by the Company and its subsidiaries.

All intra-group transactions and balances among companies within the group are eliminated in the
consolidated financial statements.

The non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are presented as a
consolidated component of equity, distinct from the equity aftributable to the Company's
shareholders. Non-controlling interests include the value of such interests as of the initial
consolidation date and their share of changes in total equity from the consolidation date. Losses
incurred by subsidiaries are allocated to non-controlling interests proportionally, even if such losses
exceed the non-controlling interests' share of the net assets of the subsidiary.

The assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities of subsidiaries are measured at their fair values on
the acquisition date. Any excess of the purchase price over the aggregate fair value of the acquired
assets is recognized as goodwill. Conversely, any shortfall between the purchase price and the
aggregate fair value of the acquired assets is recognized in the income statement for the accounting
period in which the subsidiary acquisition occurred.
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INVESTMENT AND CONSTRUCTION

JOINT STOCK COMPANY NO4 Form B 09 - DN/HN
No. 243A De La Thanh Street, Lang Thuong Ward, Issued under Circular 202/2014/TT- BTC22nd
Dong Da District, Hanoi City, Vietnam December 2014 of Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended December 31%, 2024

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Consolidated Subsidiaries:

IKCONS Construction Joint Stock Company was established and operates under Enterprise
Registration Certificate No. 0109844756 issued by the Hanoi Department of Planning and
Investment on December 6, 2021. The company operates in the field of construction. Investment
and Construction Joint Stock Company No. 4 holds 51% of the contributed capital.

Viet Nam Packaging Corporation was established and operates under Enterprise Registration
Certificate No. 0100107349 issued by the Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment on May
21, 1998, and last amended on April 8, 2022. The company operates in the real estate business.
Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company No. 4 holds 66.27% of the contributed capital.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards (VAS), the current Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System, and other relevant legal
regulations requires the General Director to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of liabilities, assets, and the presentation of contingent liabilities and assets as of the reporting
date, as well as the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the fiscal year. Actual results
may differ from these estimates and assumptions.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand, bank deposits.

Cash equivalents comprise short-term deposits and highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of less than 3 months that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and that are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial investments
Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments include term deposits with an original maturity of over 3 months and
loans held until maturity for the purpose of earning periodic interest.

These investments are recognized at cost, net of any allowance for doubtful debts.

Allowances for doubtful debts related to held-to-maturity investments are established in accordance
with prevailing accounting regulations. L

Loans
Loans are recognized at cost, net of any allowance for doubtful debts.

Allowances for doubtful debts related to loans are established in accordance with prevailing
accounting regulations.

Investments in Joint Ventures, Associates, and Other Investments

Investments in joint ventures and associates where the Company has significant influence, these
investments are presented in the consolidated financial statements usin g the equity method.

Other investments: These are initially recognized at cost, which includes the purchase price and any
directly attributable acquisition costs. Subsequently, they are measured at cost less any allowance
for investment devaluation.
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INVESTMENT AND CONSTRUCTION
JOINT STOCK COMPANY NO4 Form B 09 - DN/HN
No. 243A De La Thanh Street, Lang Thuong Ward, Issued under Circular 202/2014/TT- BTC22nd

Dong Da District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

December 2014 of Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended December 31, 2024

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Owners’ equity
Owner’s investment is recognized at the actual capital contributed by the owners.

Share premium is recognized based on the difference between the actual issuance price and the

nominal value of shares during the initial issue, additional issuance, or reissuance of treasury

shares.

Retained earnings are determined based on post-tax profit and dividend distribution.

Net income after tax is allocated as dividends to shareholders upon approval by the Shareholder's
General Assembly at the Company's Annual General Meeting, after setting aside reserves as per the
Company’s Charter.

Dividends are recognized as liabilities when approved by the General Assembly of Shareholders.
Revenue, Other Income
Construction Confracts

For construction contracts where the company is paid based on the actual work completed, revenue
and expenses are recognized based on the work completed and customer acknowledgment in the
year as reflected in the invoice issued.

When the contract’s results cannot be reliably estimated, revenue is recognized only up to the costs
incurred that are recoverable, with no profit recognized even if the total costs exceed the total revenue.

Sales Revenue

from the sale of goods is recognized when all of the following (5) conditions are met:

(a) The company has transferred most of the risks and rewards of ownership of the goods to the
buyer;

(b) The company no longer has control over the goods as the owner;

(c) Revenue can be reliably measured:;

(d) The company will receive economic benefits from the transaction; and

(e) The costs incurred for the sale transaction can be reliably measured.

Service Revenue

Revenue from service transactions is recognized when the result of the transaction can be reliably
determined. For services spanning multiple periods, revenue is recognized in the year based on the
work completed at the balance sheet date. The result is recognized when all of the following
conditions are satisfied:

(a) Revenue can be reliably measured;

(b) There is certainty in receiving economic benefits from the service transaction;
(c) The work completed at the balance sheet date can be determined; and

(d) The costs incurred to complete the service transaction can be determined.
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INVESTMENT AND CONSTRUCTION

JOINT STOCK COMPANY NO4 Form B 09 - DN/HN
No. 243A De La Thanh Street, Lang Thuong Ward, Issued under Circular 202/2014/TT- BTC22nd
Dong Da District, Hanoi City, Viemam December 2014 of Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended December 31%, 2024

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue, Other Income (Continued)
Real Estate Sales Revenue

Revenue from selling real estate where the company is the investor is recognized when the

following conditions are met: “\ ;
The property h_as been fully completed afad handed over to the buyer, and the company has -{\%\} r’;““-
transferred the risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer. | !'.II o .
® The company no longer retains control over the property. f ) "\"j:\flj
e Revenue can be reliably measured. V4 k‘\\\

e The company has or will receive economic benefits from the transaction.

s The costs related to the sale can be determined.

Interest, Dividends, and Other Income: Revenue is recognized when the company can receive economic
benefits from the activity and the amount is reliably measurable.

Cost of goods sold

The cost of goods sold and service provision is the total cost incurred for the service, investment
property, or production cost of construction products during the year, in line with revenue recognition.
Any abnormal inventory costs are immediately recognized as part of the cost of goods sold.

Financial Expense
- Financial expenses reflect expenses incurred during the period: interest on loans during the period.

Current and deferred corporate income tax expenses

Corporate income tax expenses (or corporate income tax mcome): is total current and deferred
income tax expenses (or total current and deferred tax) in determining profit or loss of a period.

e Current income fax expenses: are corporate income tax payable calculated on taxable profit
during the year and current corporate income tax rate. Current income tax is calculated on
taxable income and applicable tax rate during the tax period. Difference between taxable
income and accounting profit is from adjustment of differences between accounting profit and
taxable income in accordance with current tax policies.

* Deferred income tax expense: The tax payable in the future arising from the recognition of
deferred income tax liabilities or the reversal of previously recognized deferred tax assets.
Deferred taxes are calculated based on the tax rate expected to apply in the year the tax is
recovered or paid, considering the current tax law.

The company has an obligation to pay corporate income tax at a rate of 20% on taxable income.

Tax determination is based on current tax regulations, which may change over time. The final
determination of corporate income tax depends on the results of audits by the competent tax
authorities.
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No. 243A De La Thanh Street, Lang Thuong Ward,
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Form B 09 - DN/HN

Issued under Circular 202/2014/TT- BTC22nd
December 2014 of Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended December 31%, 2024

4.

8.1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties

A party is considered a related party of the Company in case that party is able to control the Company
or to cause material effects on the financial decisions as well as the operations of the Company. A
party is also considered a related party of the Corporation in case that party is under the same control
or is subject to the same material effects.

When considering the relationship of related parties, the nature of relationship is focused more than its
legal form.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing net profit (loss) after tax for the year attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year,

Segment reporting

A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged in manufacturing
or providing products or related services (by business segment) or in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment (geographical area) which is subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of other segments. The Board of General Directors confirms that the
Corporation operates in construction, real estate business, other revenue in a single geographical
segment - Vietnam. Therefore, the Corporation presents segment reports by business segments and by
geographical segments in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 28 - Segment
Reporting.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION FOR ITEMS PRESENTED ON THE
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Cash at bank
Cash equivalent

-Term deposits of no more than 3 months

Total

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
465,921,541 769,406,789
34,848,882,194 43,037,134,476
60,134,370,388 53,831,737,869

60,134,370,388

53,831,737,869

95,449,174,123

97,638,279,134

(*): Term deposits of no more than 03 months at commercial banks, bearing interest rates ranging from 4%

to 4.5% per annum.

52, Short-term Financial investments

J1/12/2024 01/01/2024
Repayable Repayable
Original value amount Original value amount
Short - term 24,800,000,000  24,800,000,000 38,800,000,000  38,800,000,000
Term deposits (*) 24,800,000,000  24,800,000,000 33,300,000,000  38,800,000,000
Total 24,800,000,000  24,800,000,000 38,800,000,000  38,800,000,000

(*): Term deposits with a six-month maturity at commercial banks, bearing interest rates ranging from 3.9% to

4% per annum.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended December 31%, 2024

5.3. Short-term Receivables from customers

Short-term

Trung Do Joint Stock Company

Riverview Luong Son Company Limited

TASECO Real Estate Investment Joint Stock Company
Van Thanh Construction Investment Co., Ltd.

Others

Total

In which
Receivables from related parties are presented
(in Note 7.1)

5.4. Repayments to suppliers

Samcons Vietnam Investment and Construction

Joint Stock Company

Licogi 12 Joint Stock Company

Seastar Maritime Trading and Service Co., Ltd.

FECON Infrastructure Construction Joint Stock Company
Others

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
581,170,079,787 493,644,855,892
4,830,848,115 4,830,848,115
11,782,576,310 12,629,283,764

379,905,520,173
105,586,531,344

327,409,355,033
51,083,362,898

79,064,603,845 97,692,006,082
581,170,079,787 493,644,855,892
379,905,520,173 327,409,355,033
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
89,002,484,017 38,045,897,817

61,043,256,628
65,897,679,177

10,748,623,473
21,000,000,000

28,812,927,176

Total 215,943,419,822 98,607,448,466
5.5. Loan receivables
Unit: VND
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Repayable Repayable
Book value amount Book value amount
Short - term 124,700,000,000 3 53,200,000,000 -
Khanh Thien Trading LLC (1) 49,000,000,000 - 49,000,000,000 -
Taseco Group Joint Stock Company - - 4,200,000,000 -
Tay Ho Investment and Development
000 = = -
Joint Stock Company (2) FHTN00.000
Long - term 128,000,000,000 - 128,000,000,000 g
Taseco Group Joint Stock Company (3) 128,000,000,000 - 128,000,000,000 -
Total 252,700,000,000 - 181,200,000,000
I which:
Receivables from related parties 128,000,000,000 - 132,200,000,000 -

(Details in Note 7.1)
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5.5 Loan receivables (Continued)

(1) Loan Agreement No. 12.2020/HDCVT/BAOBI-KHANHTHIEN dated December 24, 2020, between
Vietnam Packaging Joint Stock Company (Lender) and Khanh Thien Trading Company Limited
(Borrower); Loan Amount: VND 49,000,000,000; Loan Term: 9 months from December 24, 2020; Interest
Rate: 4.5% per annum; '

Loan Purpose: To provide additional working capital for business operations, including annexes No. 01, 02,
and 03, extending the loan term of Agreement No. 12.2020/HDCVT/BAOBI-KHANHTHIEN to December
31, 2025.

(2) Loan Agreements No. 01/24.05.2024/HDCVT/IKCONS-HOTAY, 02/24.05.2024/HPCVT/IKCONS-
HOTAY, and 03/24.05.2024/HDCVT/IKCONS-HOTAY, dated May 24, 2024, between IKCONS
Construction Joint Stock Company and Ho Tay Investment and Development Joint Stock Company. Loan
amounts are VND 25,000,000,000; VND 25,000,000,000: and VND 27,000,000,000, respectively. Loan
Term: 1 month. Interest Rate: 5% per annum. ,

(3)  Includes the following Loan Agreements and annexes:

- Loan Agreement No. 13.2020/HDCV/BAOBI-TASECOGR dated December 24, 2020, between
Vietnam Packaging Joint Stock Company (Lender) and TASECO Group Joint Stock Company (Borrower);
Loan Amount: VND 97,000,000,000; Loan Term: 9 months from December 24, 2020; Interest Rate: 5% per
annum; Loan Purpose: To provide additional working capital for business operations, including annexes, the
most recent being Annex No. 06, extending the loan term of Agreement No. 13.2020/HPCV/BAOBI-
TASECOGR to February 28, 2026.

- Loan Agreement No. 29.06.2022/HDCV/BAOBI-TASECOGR dated June 29, 2022, between
Vietnam Packaging Joint Stock Company (Lender) and TASECO Group Joint Stock Company (Borrower);
Loan Amount: VND 18,000,000,000; Loan Term: 12 months from June 29, 2022; Interest Rate: 5% per
annum; Loan Purpose: To provide additional working capital for business operations, including annexes, the
most recent being Annex No. 04, extending the loan term of Agreement No. 29.06.2022/HBCV/BAORI
TASECOGR to June 29, 2026.

- Loan Agreement No. 28.06.2022/HDCV/BAOBL-TASECOGR dated June 28, 2022, between
Vietnam Packaging Joint Stock Company (Lender) and TASECO Group Joint Stock Company (Borrower);
Loan Amount: VND 19,000,000,000; Loan Term: 12 months from June 28, 2022; Interest Rate: 5% per
annum; Loan Purpose: To provide additional working capital for business operations, including annexes, the
most recent being Annex No. 04, extending the loan term of Agreement No. 28.06.2022/HPCV/BAOBI-
TASECOGR to June 28, 2026.
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5.6. Other receivables
Unit: VND
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Book value Provisions Book value Provisions
Short-term 49.663,724,183 = 45,689,264,636 z
Deposite 105,999,300 - 5,000,000 -
Advance to employees 23,780,250,954 - 22,377,013,927 -
Others 25,777.473,929 23,307,250,709 -
Accrued interest on term deposits 308412111 - 393,904,110 -
Tase.-:fn Group Joint Stock Company i 189,726,024
(Receivables)
TASECO Real Esiate Investment Joint 11.852,510,293 i 17.588,125,019 i
Stock Company
Khan.f.? Thien Trading LLC 368 506,850 . 187,273,973 i
(Receivables)
The Joint Stock Company for
Investment and Development of Tay Ho 2,322 945 205 £ - -
(Receivables)
Others 10,925,099 470 - 10,948,221,583 -
Long-term 25,714,764,757 - 24.476,968,870 -
Deposite 14,356,153,800 - 14,337,653,800 -
Taseco Group Joint Stock Company 11,358,610,957 - 10,139,315,070 -
Total 75,378,488,940 - 70,166,233,506 -
In which:
Other receivable from related parties 23,227,321,250 - 21917166113 -
5.7. Inventories Unit: VND
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Original value Provisions Original value Provisions

Raw materials, supplies
Tools

Work-in-progress

5,450,340,265

155,819,275,628

7,087,439,437
201,000,000

209,624,345,562

Total

161,269,615,893

216,912,784,999
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<&
The historical cost of fully depreciated tangible fixed assets still in use as of December 31, 2024, amounts to
VND 9.641,940,725 (as of December 31, 2023; VND 11,881,154,653).

The net book value of tangible fixed assets used as collateral for loans as of December 31, 2024, is VND
66,589,400,523 (as of December 31, 2023: VND 70,430,602,047).

24

5.8. Short-term and long-term prepaid expenses
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
Short-term 690,988,376 1,321,360,404
Tools and supplies expenses 41,632,756 262,998,979
Deferred expenses 649,355,620 1,058,361,425
Long-term 5,841,062,429 11,150,299,697
Tools and supplies expenses 3,798.829,781 7,274,623,345 \ /.
Software expenses 101,851,356 25,985,337 24\ lo
Major repairs of fixed assets 1,123,115,132 3,387.402,312 ﬁ? | '-,1,;
Others 817,266,160 462,288,703 ;:;" .,,j.l;’ \
Total 6,532,050,805 12,471,660,101 ;-é;;'
5.9 Tangible fixed assets
Unit: VND
Houses, Machinery, Transportation Office
architecture equipment means equipment Total
HISTORY COST
As of 01/01/2024 124,571,067,587  11,446,581,005 11,389,443,890  2,354,250,221 149,961,342,703
Increase 474,000,000 7,587,574,074 - - 8,061,574,074
Purchased 474,000,000 T7.587,574.074 - - 8,061,574,074
Decrease - 2,199,533,930 842,794,455 87,370,000 3,129,698,385
Liguidation 2,199,533,930 - 87,370,600 2,286,503.930
Reduction dug to
divestment {rom - - 842,794,455 842,794,455
subsidiary company *
As of 31/12/2024 125,045,067,587 _ 16,834,621,149  10,746,649,435  2,266.880,221 154,893,218,392 }5
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 3
As of 01/01/2024 35,999,076,525 4,152,475,775 5,782,849,052  1,268,221,979 47,212,623,331
Increase 6,667,303,593 I,833,425,312 1,010,474,163 451,534,856 9,964,748,924
- Depreeiation 6.667,303,593 1235425312  1,010,474,163 451 534 856 9,964,748,924
Decrease - 2,193,533,930 175,582,185 87,370,000 2,462,486,115
Liguidation 2,199,533,930 - 87,370,000 2,286,903,930
Reduction due to
divestment from - - 175,582,185 - 175,582,185
subsidiary company
As of 31/12/2024 42,666,380,118 3,798,378,157 6,617,741,030  1,632.386,835 54,714,886,140
NET BOOK VALUE
As of 01/01/2024 §8,571,991,062 7,284,105,230 5,806,594,838  1,086,028,242 102,748,719,372
Asof 31/12/2024 82.378,687,469 13,036,242,092 4,128,908,405 634,493,386 100,178,332,252
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5.10 Intangible fixed assets

Unit: VND

Rights of use land Brand value Others Total
HISTORY COST
As of 01/01/2024 22,136,137.460 1,000,000,000 30,000,000 23,216,137,460
Increase - - 2 -
Others - - - -
Decrease - - & i
As of 31/12/2024 22,136,137,460 1,000,000,000 80,000,000 23,216,137,460
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
As of 01/01/2024 8,291,578,864 1,000,000,000 51,999,987 9,343,578,851
Increase 697,493,520 - 15,999,996 713,493,516
Armotization 697,493,520 - 15,999,966 713,493,516
Decrease - - - -
As 0f 31/12/2024 8,989,072,384 1,000,000,000 67,999,983 10,057,072,367
NET BOOK VALUE
As of 01/01/2024 13,844,558,596 - 28,000,013 13,872,558,609
Aso0f31/12/2024 13,147,065,076 - 12,000,017 13,159,065,093

The cost of the intangible fixed asset that has been fully amortized but still in use as of December 31 , 2024

is 1,000,000,000 VND (as of December 31, 2023, it is 1,000,000,000 VND).

5.11 Imvestment property

Unit: VND
Items 01/01/2024 Increase Decrease 31/12/2024
Investment property for rent
Historical cost 226,935,142,429 - - 226,935,142,429
- House 226,935,142, 429 - - 226,935,142,429
Accumulated depreciation 76,719,332,049 7,578,406,884 - 84,297,738,933
- House 76,719,332,049 7,578,406,884 - 84,297,738,933
Residual value 150,215,810,380 (7,578,406,884) - 142,637,403,496

- House 150,215,810,380

(7,578,406,884)

142,637,403,496

(i) The Company's investment property as of December 31, 2024, includes office floor space for commercial
lease at Project 243A, De La Thanh, Dong Da District, Hanoi. Revenue generated during the vear from the
investment property leasing activities amounted to VND 15,305,719,072, while the corresponding cost of
revenue for this activity was VND 7,988,675,700.

The Company has not yet determined the fair value of the entire investment property as of December 31,
2024, due to insufficient market information available for fair value estimation purposes.
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5.12  Construction in progress Unit: YND
31/12/2024 01/01/2024

Recoverable Recoverable

Original value amount Original value amount

Foutheast Residential Area, 102,170.911,144  102,170,911,144  97,182,707,361  97,182,707,36]

To Huu Street (*)

Don Luong Ha Nam Project 478,489,303 478,489,303 - -
Others 1,643,882,478 1,643,882,478 468,400,245 468,400,245
Total 104,293,282,925  104,293,282,925  97,651,107,606  97,651,107,606

(*) The Southeast Housing Group project on To Huu Street is extended:

- Purpose: To build a synchronized technical infrastructure system, including low-rise residential areas
(garden houses), mixed-use high-rise areas (housing, public services, offices, hotels), and a kindergarten.

- Investment Cooperation Agreement: The Company entered into an investment cooperation contract No.
1012/201 I/HDHTDT/ICON4-NHS on December 10, 2011, with NHS Construction Investment Joint
Stock Company. Both parties agreed to contribute capital to jointly implement the project, complete it,
and distribute products based on their contribution ratio.

As of December 31, 2024, the project was approved for an adjustment of investment policy by the Hanoi
People's Committee under Decision No. 5475/QD-UBND dated October 27, 2023:

- Land Use Scale:38.550 m? in which:
+ Low-rise residential plots: TT-01 (5,448 m?), TT-02 (3,386 m?), and TT-03 (6,961 m?);
+ Plot HH-02A: 2,726.1 m? designated for social housing construction;

+ Plot HH-01: 6,247 m? for mixed-use development (residential, public services, commercial, and office
spaces);

+ Plot NT: 4,033 m? for building a kindergarten and preschool;

+ Remaining 9,749 m? allocated for roads and technical infrastructure.

- The project's investment capital is about 1,875,623 billion VND, of which the Investor's equity is about
392 billion VND (accounting for about 20.9% of the total investment capital), the remaining about
1,483,623 billion VND is borrowed capital and other legally mobilized capital.

- Implementation Schedule: By the fourth quarter of 2025.

As of December 31, 2024, the Project has been granted Environmental Permit No. 127/GPMT-UBND by
the People's Committee of Hanoi. Currently, the investor is carrying out the following procedures: Adjusting
the Land Allocation Decision No. 58/QD-UBND dated January 5, 2009; implementing the construction
design for technical infrastructure, low-rise housing, kindergartens, and schools; completing the land
clearance procedures for the public land area managed by the People's Committee of Trung Van Ward; and
requesting confirmation of the completion of land clearance and other necessary tasks for the Project.

Regarding the social housing at Lot HH-02A, construction has been completed, and the houses have been
handed over to buyers.
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5.13 Long-term Financial Investment
Rate

31/12/2024 (VND) 01/01/2024 (VND)
Capital Voting Yalue based on the Value based on the
held rights Original price equity method Original price equity method
Investment in Joint Venture Company 1,800,000,000 - 1,800,000,000
Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company No. 4.2 30.00% 30.00% 1,800,000,000 1,800,000,000
Total 1,800,000,000 - 1,800,000,000 -
Rate 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Capital Voting Original Fair Original Fair
held rights price value Provisions price value Provisions
Other long-term investments 6,116,100,000 (5,500,000,000) 11,196,100,000 (6,580,000,000)
Joint Stock Company for Investment and
Construction No. 4 - Van Xuan (i) 4,000,000,000 _
SAHABAK Joint Stock Company 5.0% 5.0% 5,500,000,000 (5,500,000,000) 5,500,000,000 (5,500,000,000)

Jeint Stock Company for Investment and
Construction No. 4.5 (ii)
VPC Printing and Packaging

1,080,000,000

(1,080,000,000)

446,330,0 & ¢

Joint Stock Company 6,330,000 446,330,000

Hung Vuong Packaging Joint Stock Company 169,770,000 . 169,770,000 )
L 6,116,100,000 (*)  (5,500,000,000) 11,196,100,000 (6,580,000,000)

(*): The Company has not determined the fair value of its investments as Vietnamese Accountin
do not have guidance on how to calculate fair value using valuation techniques. The fair value of this financial instrum

(i) During the year, the Company divested capital from Investment and Constru
16/2024/NQ-HDQT dated August 7, 2024 of the Board of Directors of the Compan

Construction Joint Stock Company No. 4 - Van Xuan;

g Standards and the

(*)

Vietnamese Corporate Accounting Regime currently
ent may differ from its carrying value.

ction Joint Stock Company No. 4 - Van Xuan in accordance with Resolution No.
y on approving the plan to divest the Company's capital contribution at Investment and

(ii) During the year, the Company divested capital from Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company No. 4.5 in accordance with Resolution No. 28/2024/N Q-HDQT

dated November 25, 2024 of the Board of Directors of the Company on approving the plan to divest the Company's capital contribution at Investment and Cor

Joint Stock Company No. 4.5.

izl
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5.14 Deferred income tax assets

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND

Deferred income tax assets related
to deductible temporary differences SHE9H3.510 Rt FORI00
Total 2,469,443,510 2,636,708,530

5.15 Goodwill

In 2024 In 2023
VND VND
Goodwill at the beginning of the year 58,901,721,896 65,507,522,482
Goodwill increased during the year = 281,311,264
Goodwill amortized during the year (6,605,800,586) (6,887,111,850)
Goodwill at the end of the vear 52,295,921.310 58,901,721,896

(1) The balance of goodwill arises from receiving shares transferred at Vietnam Packaging Joint Stock
Company. Vietnam Packaging Joint Stock Company is making an investment plan to build a project at the
location of the land lot owned by the Company according to current regulations. The Board of General
Directors believes and ensures that no losses will arise on this investment.

5.16 Short-term trade payables

Unit: VND
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Repayable Repayable
Booli value amount Book value amount
Short - term 331,518,608,449  331,518,608,449 283,023,594,010  283,023,594,010
4, 2_ Im:esunenl and Construction i ) 4.532.908,022 4,532,908,022
Joint Stock Company
Anh Dunp Infstimsiiune 642,477,181 642,477,181 642,477,181 642,477,181
Construction LLC
Boho Decor LLC - - 1,297,816.,002 1,297,816,002
% OB Camnenanon 8,774,178012  8,774,178,012  8,665253.791 8,665,253,791
Joint Stock Company
VNINVEST Joint Stock Company - 18,030,304,850  18,039,304,850  15,530437,790  15,530.437.790
Urban Investment and Construction
Finss Fang 7 Inevestrcent and 12,014,150,671  12,914,150,671  19,349,681,736  19,349,681.736
Construction Joint Stock Company
Taseco Real Estate Investmment Joint i ) 17.600,000 17,600,000
Stock Company
Investment and Construction Joint e
% 54 31 6,54 & =
Stock Company No. 18.5 St S S
SAMCDI\.IS Vw_tnam Investment and 48,785,107,635 48,785,107,635 - -
Construction Joint Stock Company
Others 210,407.803,557  210,407,803,557  232,987,419,488 232 987419 488
Total 331,518,608,449  331,518,608,449 283,023,594,010  283,023,594,010
In which
Payables to related parties 444,696,014 444,696,014 5,271,895,157 5,271,895,157

(Details in Note 7.1)
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5.17 Short -term received in advance

Hanoi Construction Corporation - JSC

Thanh An 386 Investment and Construction Joint Stock
Company - Upgrading Project of National Highway 1 -
Binh Dinh - Mechanical Enterprise

TASECO Real Estate Investment Joint Stock Company
Others

31/12/2024
VYND

01/01/2024
VND

12,680,037,126

6,538,455,070

192,380,760,066
1,274,878,892

12,680,037,126

6,538,455,070

10,298,180,136

Total 212,874,131,154 29,516,672,332
5.18  Taxes and receivables, payables to the State Budget

Unit: VND

01/01/2024 Additions Paid 31/12/2024

Payables 18,034,852,937 33,737,076,941 34,149,634,860 17,622,295,018

VAT 1,543,716,882 14,014,365,967 14,015,803,872 1,542,278,977

Corporate income tax (1) 15,449,788,378

Personal income tax 915,842,445
Land tax, Land rental charges -
Fee, charges and other payables 125,505,232
Receivables 2.901,060,319
Import and export taxes 2,406,336,000
Land tax, Land rental charges 494,724,319

5.19 Short-term accrued expenses

Short-term
Advanced project cost
Others

Total

5.20 Unearned revenues

Short-term

Office rental unearned revenue
Short-term

Office rental unearned revenue
Total

In which:
Unearned revenue with related parties
(Details in Note 7.1)
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12,558,730,050 15,071,865,595

12,936,652,833

1,892,463,985  2,130,853,603 677,452,827
2,528,575509  2,528,575,509 :
2,742,941,430 402,536,281  2,465,910,381
2,900,589,207 471,112
2,406,336,000 : 5
494253207 2 471,112
31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VND
9,386,449,589 33,183,640,628
8,703,195,324 32,801,773,956
683,254,265 381,866,672
9.386,449,589 33,183,640,628
31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VND

7,385,428,633
7,885,428,633

7,749,182,197
7,749,182,197

120,538,125,000 127,234,687,500
120,538,125,000 127,234,687,500
128,423,553,633 134,983,869,697
127,234,687,500 133,931,250,000
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5.21  Other payables
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
Short-term 54,740,128,823 42,859,041,556
Trade union fund 404,888,783 440,448,053
Social insurance 1,625,000 -
Short-term deposits and guarantees 2,180,900,993 1,630,362,324 °
Health insurance 292,500 -
Unemployment insurance 130,000 =
Others ' 52,152,291,547 40,788,231,179 /
Dividend payables 10,633,148,304 1,370,031,804 =

Received capital contribution for business cooperation (i)
Thanh Cong E&C Joint Stock Company (ii)
Board of Directors and Supervisory Board Remuneration

22,760,935,262
10.127,590,727
1,063,200,000

21,408,071,754
10,127,590,727
1,289,050,000

Others 7.567,417,254 6,593,456,894
Long-term 1,339,160,000 1,469,790,000
Others 1,339,160,000 1,469,790,000
Total 56,079,288,823 44,328,831,556

In which:

(i): Investment Cooperation Contract No. 1012/2011/HDHTBDT/ICON4 - NHS Southeast Housing Grong
Project on Lang Ha - Thanh Xuan Street extended on December 10, 2011 between Investment

)

(9]

N 4 40

>

I
/

-

Construction Joint Stock Company No. 4 and NHS Construction Investment Joint Stock Company;
Contribution ratio; Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company No. 4 contributes 70%, NHS
Construction Investment Joint Stock Company contributes 30%: Division ratio: According to capital
contribution ratio.

- For products that can be divided, the two parties will divide according to the ratio and detailed regulations
in the appendix on the division of high-rise housing and low-rise residential land.

- For products that cannot be divided, the two parties agree that there are two division options as follows:
+ Option 1: Both parties agree to transfer to each other at the agreed price;

+ Option 2: If not transferred to each other, the two parties will invest, do business together or transfer to a
third party. Profits will be divided according to the actual capital contribution ratio.

(ii): Is the amount payable to Thanh Cong E&C Joint Stock Company for overpayment when implementing
the Contract to transfer the entire project of Office complex, apartments for sale and for rent at 343-345 Doi
Can, Lieu Giai, Ba Dinh, Hanoi on July 12, 2014 between Investment and Construction Joint Stock
Company No. 4 and Thanh Cong E&C Joint Stock Company.
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522  Borrowings and finance lease liabilities

Short-term borrowings

Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and
Development of Vietnam - Branch 1 (1)

Military Commercial Joint Stock Bank

- Thang Long Branch

Joint Stock Commercial Bank AB Bank - Hanoi Branch

Long-term borrowings is due to be repaid
Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and
Development of Vietnam - Branch 1 (2)

Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and
Development of Vietnam - Branch 1 (3)

Military Commercial Joint Stock Bank

- Thang Long Branch (4)

Long-term borrowings

- Under 60 montits

Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and
Development of Vietnam - Branch 1 (2)

Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and
Development of Vietnam - Branch 1 (3)

Military Commercial Joint Stock Bank
- Thang Long Branch (4)

Total

LUnit: VND

31/12/2024 During the year 01/01/2024
Repayable Repayable
Value amount Increase Decrease Value amount
183,308,012,455 183,308,012,455 275,024,178,639 296,447,097,375  204,730,931,191 204,730,931,191
183,308,012,455 183,308,012,455 252,139,662,311 210,658,484,628 141,826,834,772 141,826,834,772

12,884,516,328

75,788,612,747

62,904,096,419

62,904,096,419

- 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000 - -
1,442,913,636 1,442,913,636 1,442,913,636 891,550,000 891,550,000 891,550,000
251,363,636 251,363,636 251,363,636 200,000,000 200,000,000 200,000,000
1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 500,000,000 500,000,000 500,000,000
191,550,000 191,550,000 191,550,000 191,550,000 191,550,000 191,550,000
2,562,906,989 2,562,906,989 - 1,442,913,6306 4,005,820,625 4,005,820,625
- - - 251,363,636 251,363,636 251,363,636
_ 2,227,694,489 2,227,694,489 - 1,000,000,000 3,227,694,489 3,227,694,489
335,212,500 335,212,500 - 191,550,000 526,762,500 526,762,500
187,313,833,080 187,313,833,080 276,467,092,275 298,781,561,011 209,628,301,816 209,628,301,816
31
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5.22 Borrowings and finance lease liabilities (Continued)

(1): Includes contracts:

- Credit limit contract No. 01/2024/913/HDTD dated November 26, 2024 between Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and Development of Vietnam -
Transaction Center Branch 1 and Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company No. 4 Credit limit: VND 250,000,000,000; in which outstanding debt, outstanding L/C
and payment guarantee at any time must not exceed VND 200,000,000,000. Purpose: supplement working capital (including short-term loans, issuing guarantees, opening
L/C to serve Customer's construction activities). Limit grant period: 12 months from the date of signing the contract, Interest rate: determined according to each specific
contract according to the bank's interest rate regime in each period. Security measures: According to the agreements on security measures recorded and implemented according
to the Contracts. Pledge/mortgage/guarantee/escrow agreement is signed between the two parties;

- Credit limit contract No. 01/2024/16591918/HDTD dated 06/12/2024 Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and Development of Vietnam - Transaction 1 Branch
and lkecons Construction Joint Stock Company; The maximum recurrent credit Limit is VND 150 billion; Purpose: Supplementing 'warking capital including short-term
loans, issuing guarantees, opening L/C for construction and installation activities of customers for projects invested by KM Cam Ranh Co., Ltd.; The term for granting the
limit is from the date of signing the contract to the end of 30/09/2025; The security interest shall be recorded and implemented according to the security contracts
concluded between the Bank and the Customer; The interest rate is determined in each specific credit contract according to the Bank's interest rate regime in each period;

- Credit limit contract No. 02/2024/16591918/HDTD dated 06/12/2024 Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and Development of Vietnam - Transaction 1 Branch
and Ikcons Construction Joint Stock Company; The maximum recurrent credit limit is VND 100 billion; Purpose: Supplementing working capital including short-term loans,
issuing guarantees, opening L/C to serve customers' construction and installation activities for projects done by Taseco Real Estate Joint Stock Company investors (credit only
for works/projects funded by BIDV); The limit grant period is from the date of signing the contract until September 30, 2025; Security measures are recorded and implemented
according to the Security Contracts concluded between the Bank and the Customer: Interest rates are determined in each specific Credit Contract according to the Bank's
interest rate regime in each period.

(2): Credit contract No. 02/2022/913/HDTDTM dated August 12, 2022 between Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company No. 4 and Joint Stock Commercial Bank for
Investment and Development of Vietnam - SGDI Branch. Loan amount: VND 75 1,363,636. Loan purpose: Pay part of the value of the investment plan to buy an Oto Fotuner K
2022 model IMP GUNI165L-SUTSXU. Loan term: 36 months. Interest rate: 8%/year applied until June 30, 2023, then floating and adjusted periodically every 6 months. Security
measures: Mortgage of assets formed from loan capital and equity capital of the investment plan is Oto Fortuner K 2022 model IMP GUN165L-SUTSXU.

(3): Credit contract No. 01/2023/913/HDTDTM dated April 5, 2022 between Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and Development of Vietnam - Transaction
Center Branch 1 and Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company No. 4; Loan limit: VND 9,250,000,000; Loan purpose: loan for reasonable costs to implement the
project to renovate and repair the Icond Tower building; Maximum loan term is 60 months from the first disbursement date under this contract; Floatin g loan interest rates
adjusted every 6 months and determined on the first working day of January and July every year. Security measures: Mortgage of assets that are office floors in the Icond
building at 243A La Thanh, Lang Thuong ward, Dong Da, Hanoi according to agreements on security measures concluded between the two parties.

(4): Loan contract No. 33000.22.054.17186930.TD dated September 30, 2022 between Ikcons Construction Joint Stock Company and Military Commercial Joint Stock
Bank - Thang Long Branch; Loan amount: VND 957,750,000: Purpose of using loan: Financing 01 Toyota Fortuner 2.7 AT 4X4 car according to contract No. 01222018
signed between Ikcons Construction Joint Stock Company and Toyota My Dinh Company Limited on June 30, 2022; Loan term: maximum 60 months; Maximum loan
withdrawal period is 03 months from July 8, 2022; Deadline for initial loan withdrawal: no later than October 7, 2022 unless otherwise agreed by MB; Interest rate:
specified in the debt acceptance document; Collateral: Toyota Fortuner 2.7 AT 4X4 car financed by MB under this contract. ‘ .

32

2 S5=Z e (g1 @ =22 8l



s -

T Z T N\ _

fizf W T S &=

£E

ol

'000°000°000°TE ANA Jo junoure

1t uerd uopnquistp puapiaIp £70¢ o pasoudde pz0z ‘ST AR Paep GOAHG-ON/FZ0Z/T0 “ON SIOPIOYAIBIS Jo BuNoA [eJoUaD) [enUUY $70Z Ay Jo uonnjosey  (11)

sAuedwiog am jo £z70z ‘71 18QUISO3( PAIEP YNODI-AD/ETOT/TIS 'ON JoUT [BIOIO Wl |
AUBE [RI0IDWWOY Y901§ JUIOL UM $Z0T “0f Arenuer woly Auedwo) yoo)s uor §
A3 wn awes 3y 1y *Aoijod sy pasoidde YoM Auedwo)) oy
PABOE 91} JO uonnjosay 2y 03 Burprosoe Kuedwoy) yoo1g juror

$1010211(] [BIaUAD)

fouelg SBUBYOXF UOHOBSURL], - WEWAIA JO JUawdOaAs(] pue JUSUNSIAL] 10]

Jo sI0j0211(] JO pieog 213} JO $Z0T
uipea, [8q0[D) THN uI [endes pay

LLP'699°ETL 8S8 86S°L8G TISH TZT PTHTS6' 0TS LS SSHOTL0TF'SE 000°000°000°0+9
(000°666°9ZZ L) (000°566°9ZZ°S1) (000°000000°ZE) = <
(000°000°1€8) (000°06£°Z51) (000°019°8L9) . ¥
(Ze6'8P1°678°L) (ZE6'8P1°678°L) - s -
L1¥'TS0°E6L 9¢ 69€°006°8VT L1 8Y0 TSI PHS 61 - .
766°09L°LOSLLS I9T° 129 IHP'8TT 9LEOTH'SHG 0L SSH6TL0TY'8E 000°000°000°0%9
T66°09L°L08°LLS I9T° 129°I¥F8T1 9LEOTH'SP6 0L SSHeTL0TH SE 000°000°000°0%9
(000°000 vFH) (TLETP1%65T) (679°858°787) 4 i
(000°000°02L) (000°0S6°v21) (000°050°565) - =

(000°566°9zZ°s1)
986°0TH €S5SS
9ST6ST6P1°L
0SL'6L0"96H 1E8

(000°56692Z°S1)
085°68€°9T° 1T
95T '6ST611°L
969850 LLE'STT

-

90t LZOLTI b€

665 167'869°LE

SCH6IL0TY'SE

000°000°000°0+9

e,

UNA -t}

Jsa19u1
Surjjonuod-uoy

X8} 18k jyoud
painqrustpun)

snjdans jende)

[endes ageyg

WIPBLL [BQO[D LHN JO j|eysq uo sjqep Aedal o) sjusmmywuion aiy seyeuruwe) Auediron)

‘0€ Arenuef pajep LOAH-ON/AFZ0Z/E0 "ON Auedwo) ay3 Jo s1010811(T JO
nqryuoo s Aueduro) ay jo [1e parsaalp Auedwoy) ayy “mak 2y Suung (1)

FL0T/IL/IE IO SY

(11) uonnqLUSIp pUSpPIAI(Y

puny a1ejjem pue snuoq 1oy uonjeridosddy
(1) Arerpisqns jo [esodsiq

potiad a1 10 Jjoig

PTOT/T0/T0 JO SV

ET0T/TI/IEFO SV

UOTJRIAUNIUS SI0J0QII(] JO PIBOE JAIINOIXI-UON
puny a1ejjam pue snuoq Joj uonenidorddy
K1eipisgng 1e juswided puoplal(]

Teak snotaasd ut yjorg

sauIeIpIsqns o} [eydes anqryuo))

€T0T/T0/T10 30 SV

[ended siapjoyaieyg jo saguey) ‘B
Amby swuMQ €76
HT0T 18] £ Joquiada(] papua Jeak a1 10,

(@INNIINOD) SINTWALVLS TVIONVNIA AALVATTOSNOD HHL O1 SHLON

wemal A A1) 10uef] JoLSI(J B Suo(]

NUBUL JO ANSIUI JO $](Z I9qUISIS PUZT
OLE ~LI/F10Z/20T te[nony) sapun panssy
NH/NA - 60 g w10y

‘prepy Buonyy, Sue eang queyl BT (1 VEPT ON
FON ANVJINOD MD0LS INIOL NOILDQMISNOD NV INAIWILSTANI



INVESTMENT AND CONSTRUCTION JOINT
STOCK COMPANY NO4

No. 243A De La Thanh Street, Lang Thuong Ward,
Dong Da District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended December 31st, 2024

5.23 Owners’ Equity (Continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN

Issued under Circular 202/2014/TT- BTC
22nd December 2014 of Ministry of Finance

b. Details of Shareholders’ capital
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
Taseco Real Estate Investment Joint Stock Company 464,000,000,000 464,000,000,000
Doan Thi Phuong Thao 128,000,000,000 128,000,000,000
Others 48,000,000,000 48,000,000,000
Total 640,000,000,000 640,000,000,000
c. Capital transactions with shareholders and appropriation of profits and dividends
In 2024 In 2023
VND VND
Shareholders’® capital
Opening balance 640,000,000,000 640,000,000,000
Increased during the period . =
Closing balance 640,000,000,000 640,000,000,000
d. Shares
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Shares Shares
Quantity of registered shares 64,000,000 64,000,000
Quantity of issued shares 64,000,000 64,000,000
Common shares 64,000,000 64,000,000
Outstanding shares 64,000,000 64,000,000
Common shares 64,000,000 64,000,000
Par value of outstanding shares (VND/ shares) 10,000 10,000

6. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME

STATEMENT

6.1 Revenue from sales of goods and services rendered

In 2024 In 2023

VND VND

Real estate business revenue 22,401,038,073 15,302,835,787

Service revenue 49,560,548,846 57,964,350,593

Construction revenue 822,838,234,924 1,300,850,782,256

Revenue from the sale of goods 40,413,643,110 29,965,906,687

Others 2,356,213,847 9,332,476,483

Total 937,569,678,800 1,413,416,351,806
In which:

Revenue from related parties: 215,944,366,911 489,884,159,794

(Details in Note 7.1)
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6.2 Cost of goods sold

In 2024 In 2023

VYND VIND

Cost of real estate business 7,988,675,700 14,772,438,951

Cost of services provided 37,210,460,460 38,332,595,345
Cost of construction confracts 768,552,822.524 1,220,236,841,932 “ ff,'i
Cost of the sale of goods 39,124,030,051 29,118,965,939 A\ /3
Others 2,053,673,797 8,791,763,932 “ o
1
.7/
Total 854,929,662,532 1,311,252,606,099 3;? §

6.3 Financial income
In 2024 In 2023
VND VND

Interest income from deposits
Late payment interest

12,654,063,133
7,833,483,740

14,236,123,190
11,588,125,019

Realized exchange rate gains 79,680,000 -
Revenue from other financial activities - 62,272,093
Profit from disposal of investments 10,000,000 &
Total 20,577,226,873 25,886,520,302°
In which: 3
Financial revenue with related parties: 9,148,097,145 18,163,051,529
(Details in Note 7.2)
6.4 Financial expenses

In 2024 In 2023

VND VND

Borrowings interest 8,992,918,813 10,045,469,315
Loss on liquidation of investment 412,313,557 5,272,696,889
Long-term financial investment reserve = 1,080.000,000
Total 9,405,232,370 16,398,166,204
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended December 31st, 2024

6.5 Selling expenses and General and administrative expenses

Selling expenses

Other cash expense

General administrative expenses
Employee expenses

Office supplies expenses
Amortization and Depreciation expenses
Charges and fee

Privision expenses

Outsourcing expenses

Other cash expense

Amortization of goodwill

Total

6.6 Other income/Other expenses

Other income

Liquidation of tools and equipment
Contract penalty

Liquidation of tangible fixed assets
Others

Total

Other expenses

Tax penalties and late payment
Contract penalty

Others

Total

Other income/other expenses (net)

6.7 Current corporate income tax expense

Current corporate income tax expense

Total

In 2024 Tn 2023

VND VND
245,850,000 -
245,850,000 .
40,956,094,166 40,654,525,026
21,658,432,472 19,306,355,429
809,880,104 837,141,304
3,363,040,733 3,088,306,319
606,229,688 1,056,596,680

1,433,348,907
3,808,091,595
4,711,252,975
4,561,681,328

1,007,433,461
4,149,033,371
4,322,546,612
6,887,111,850

41,201,944,166 40,654,525,026
In 2024 In 2023

VND VND

- 4,545,455

257,664.339 215,960,637
62,981,820 -
113,606,385 603,272,269
434,252,544 823,778,361
2,495,072,501 54,823,465
444,279,280 25,200,000
380,354,066 400,817,007
3,319,705,847 480,840,472
(2,885,453,303) 342,937,889
In 2024 In 2023

VND VND
12,764,295,865 15,148,690,816
12,764,295,865 15,148,690,816
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CON TINUED)

For the year ended December 3 1st, 2024

6.8 Deferred corporate income tax expenses

In 2024 In 2023
VND VND
Defi te i ta iSi taxabl
eferred corporate income tax expenses arising from taxable 167,265,020 638,404,866
temporary differences
Total 167,265,020 638,404,866
6.9 Basic earnings per share
In 2024 In 2023
VND VND
Accounting profit after corporate income tax 36,793,052,417 55,553,416,986

Profit after tax attributable to non-controlling interests
Adjustments to increase

17,248,900,369

21,426,389,580

Adjustments to decrease 678,610,000 879,908,629
Remuneration for the Board of Directors and the Supervisory

Board not directly involved in management, and bonuses for 678 610,000 879 908,629
the Executive Board

Profit or loss allocated to shareholders owning common

shares of the Parent Company (VND) 18 8u382 00k 22245118777
Average number of outstanding shares in the year (share) 64,000,000 64,000,000
Basic earnings per share (VND/ share) 295 519

As of the reporting date, the Company has estimated the profit for the financial year ending on December
31, 2024, to be allocated for remuneration of the Board of Directors, the Supervisory Board (excluding
executive members), and bonuses for the executive management team. The final decision rests with the
Company’s General Meeting of Shareholders, and net profit attributable to shareholders as well as basic
earnings per share may be subject to change

6.10  Production and business expenses by factors

In 2024 In 2023
VND VND
Raw material expenses 99.265,854,205 56,489,155,918

Employee expenses 30,125,353,676 25,754,204,096

Amortization and Depreciation expenses 18,256,649,324 35,257,095,822
Provision expenses 15,260,535,591 1,007,433,461
Outsourcing expenses 682,739,268,851 1,240.,262,800,972

Other cash expenses 8,009,266,087 11,697,343,387

Total 853,656,927,734 1,370,468,033,656
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTIN UED)

For the year ended December 3 1st, 2024
7. OTHER INFORMATION
7.1 Information of related parties

The company has related partics as follows:

Related Parties Relationship }}
Taseco Group Joint Stock Company Ultimate Parent N
Taseco Real Estate Investment Joint Stock Company Parent i
Phu My Real Estate Investment Joint Stock Company Same Parent WING
International Real Estate Management Joint Stock Company Same Parent -
International Eco-tourism Investment Joint Stock Company Same Parent f
Taseco Invest Investment Joint Stock Company Same Parent ;“},
Alacarte Ha Long Joint Stock Company Same Parent ¥
Yen Binh Investment and Service Joint Stock Company Same Parent

TAH Investment Joint Stock Company Same Parent

Taseco Da Nang Resort Real Estate Investment Joint Stock Company Same Parent

Taseco Hai Phong Joint Stock Company Same Parent

Taseco Aviation Services Joint Stock Company Group Company

Taseco Da Nang Aviation Services Joint Stock Company Group Company

Taseco Saigon Aviation Services Joint Stock Company Group Company

Taseco Oceanview Da Nang Company Limited Group Company

Taseco Media Investment Joint Stock Company Group Company

Vietnam Air Catering Joint Stock Company Group Company .:T"}x
Taseco Investment and exploitation of Da Nang International Terminal Group Company \?\;
Jalux Taseco Duty Free Company Limited Group Company |
Taseco Phu Quoc Aviation Services Joint Stock Company Group Company WN
Ha Linh Services Joint Stock Company Group Company AM
Vietnam Aviation Cargo Services Joint Stock Company Group Company /‘J:
Tay Ha Investment - Construction Joint Stock Company Group Company 5
AAL Air Freight Forwarding Joint Stock Company Group Company

Trang An Real Estate Investment Joint Stock Company Related Company

Tam Vien Ho Tay Joint Stock Company Related Company

ALC Ha Long Building Management Company Limited Related Company

TDH Hanoi Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company Related Company

Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company No. 4.2 Associate

Members of the Board of Directors, Supervisory Board, General Director St Tifisnce

Board, other managers and close individuals in the family of these members
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7.1 Information of related parties (Continued)

During the year, the Company had transactions with related parties as follows:

Transactions with shareholders and key personnel

Salary and remuneration of the Boards of Management, Supervisors, General Directors and Chief

Accountant; f‘;
In 2024 In2023 . v
Related Parties Nature of transaction VND VND 2y 7
Board of Directors, ? \
e o Salary and remuneration 2809971921  2,508803355  /
General Director and
Chief Accountant
Detail as:
In 2024 In 2023
Board Member Remuneration 348,000,000 448,000,000
. Chairman of the Board of Directors
Mr. Nguyen Tran Tung (Appointed on 15/5/2024) 37,500,000 -
; Chairman of the Board of Directors
Mr. Dao Tien Duong (Resigned on 15/5/2024) 46,500,000 184,000,000
Mr. Nguven Duc Ha Member 96,000,000 96,000,000
Ms. Cao Thi Lan Huong ~ Member 36,000,000 36,000,000
Mr. Nguyen Duc Lai Member 96,000,000 96,000,000
Ong Pang Huy Khéi Member 36,000,000 36,000,000
Board of Supervisors' Remuneration 144,000,000 144,000,000
Ms, Tran Thi Loan Head of the Supervisory Board 96,000,000 96,000,000
Mr. Do Le Nam Member of the Supervisory Board 24,000,000 24,000,000
; Member of the Supervisory Board ;
Ms. Vu Thi Khanh Ha (Resigned on 15/5/2024) 9,000,000 24,000,000
; Member of the Supervisory Board (Appointed .
Mr, Dang Xuan Hien on 15/5/2024) 15,000,000 -
Salaries of the Board of Directors and other managers 2,317,971,921 1,916,803,355
Mr. Nguyen Duc Lai General Director 893,062,500 858,565,000
Deputy General Director
7 &
Mr. Khuat Trung Thang (Appointed on 01/11/2024) 137,933,333
Mr. Nguyen Song Ha Deputy General Manager 644,100,000 639,850,000
Ms. Pham Thi Kieu Trang Chief Accountant Information Discloser 642,876,088 418,388,335
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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7.1 Information of related parties (Continued)
Transactions with related parties
In 2024 In 2023
Related parties Relationship Nature of transactior VND VND
Sale of goods 215,944,366,911  489,884,159,794
International Real Estate Same Parent Servi 295,964 420 452.180.252
Management Joint Stock Company Company ervice e e
CO est t :

LASECO Reg! Batstel ryestmin Parent Company  Construction 215,718,402,491  489,431,979,542
Joint Stock Company
Purchase of goods 3,715,906,226 6,907,129,062

s . Ultimate Parent .
Taseco Group Joint Stock Company oy Renting fee 318,181,820 318,181,820
International Real Estate Same Parent .
Management Joint Stock Company Company Service fee 32,245,130 6352,280.573

Taseco Oceanview Da Nang One
Member Limited Liability Company

Taseco Real Estate Investment
Joint Stock Company

Alacarte Ha Long
Joint Stock Company

Loan
Taseco Group Joint Stock Company

Principal repayment on loan
Taseco Group Joint Stock Company
Financial income

Taseco Group Joint Stock Company

Taseco Real Estate Investment
Joint Stock Company

Company within

the same group

Purchase service

Parent Company Purchase service

Same Parent
Company

Ultimate Parent
Company

Ultimate Parent
Company

Ultimate Parent
Company

Purchase service

Loan

Principal
repayment on loan

Loan interest

Parent Company Late interest

40

36,666,669

69,812,600

9,148,097,145

5,929,569,863

3,218,527,282

36,666,669
13,000,000,000
13,000,000,000
10,000,000,000
10,000,000,000
18,163,051,529

6,574,931,510

11,588,120,019
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7.1 Information of related parties (Continued)

Related Party Balance

Nature of 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Related parties Relationship transaction VND VND
Receivables from customers 379,905,520,173  327,409,355,033
Taseco Real Estate Investment Parent C Co : "
O —— arent Company nstruction 379,905,520,173  327,409,355,033
Other receivables 11,868,710,293 11,777,851,043

Taseco Real Estate Investment
Joint Stock Company
Taseco Group Joint Stock Company

Other long-term receivables

Taseco Group Joint Stock Company

Receivables from loans

Taseco Group Joint Stock Company

Payables

Investment and Construction Joint
Stock Company No. 4.2
International Real Estate
Management Joint Stock Company

Taseco Real Estate Investment
Joint Stock Company

Alacarte Ha Long
Joint Stock Company

Taseco Group Joint Stock Company

Advance from costomers

TASECO Real Estate Investment
Joint Stock Company

Unearned revenue

Taseco Group Joint Stock Company

Parent Company

Ultimate parent
company

Ultimate parent
company

Ultimate parent
company

Associate

Same Parent
Company

Parent Company

Same Parent
Company

Ultimate parent
company

Parent Company

Ultimate Parent
Company

Late interest

Loan interest

Loan interest

Loan

Purchase of goods

Purchase of goods
Purchase service

Purchase service

Purchase service

Construction

Long-term
office rental

41

11,868.710,293

11,358,610,957
11,358,610,957

128,000,000,000
128,000,000,000

444,696,014

444696014

192,380,760,066
192,380,760,066

127,234,687,500
127,234,687,500

11,588,125,019

189,726,024
10,139,315,070
10,139,315,070

132,200,000,000
132,200,000,000

5,271,895.157

4,532,908,022

713,587,135

17,600,000

4,800,000

3,000,000

133,931,250,000
133,931,250,000
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7.2 Segment reporting

(CONTINUED)

Segment reporting for the financial year ending December 31, 2024, is as follows:

Construction and

Provision of

Real estate

installation services and sales business Total
REVENUE
Net revenue 822,838,234,924 92,330,405,803  22,401,038,073 937,569,678,800
Cost of goods sold (768,552,822,524)  (78,388,164,308) (7.988,675,700) * (854,929,662,532)
Gross revenues 54,285,412,400 13,942,241,495  14,412,362,373 82,640,016,268
RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS
Segment results 54,285,412,400 13,942,241,495  14,412,362,373 32,640,016,268
Interest income - - - 20,577,226,873
Financial expenses - - (9,405,232,370)
Share of profit or loss in joint
ventures and associates ) ) ) )
Administrative and selling ) ) (41,201,944,166)
expenses
Other income unrelated to
production and business - - - (2,885,453,303)

activities

Corporate income tax

(12,931,560,885)

T4 5

Profit for the period 36,793,052,417
Segment reporting for the financial year ending December 31, 2023, is as follows:
Construction and Provision of Real estate

installation services and sales business Total
REVENUE
Net revenue 1,300,850,782,256 97,262,733,763 15,302,835,787 1.4 13.416,351,806
Cost of goods sold (1,220,236,841,932)  (76,243,325,216) (14,772,438,951) (1,311,252,606,099)
Gross revenues 80,613,940,324 21,019.408,547 530,396,836 102,163,745,707
RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS
Segment results 80,613,940,324 21,019,408,547 530,396,836 102,163,745,707

Interest income
Financial expenses
Administrative and selling

25,886,520,302
(16,398,166,204)

(40,654,525,026)
expenses

Other profit 342,937,889
Corporate income tax (15,787,095,682)
Profit for the period 55,553,416,986
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T2 Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2024, are as follows:

Construction and

Provision of

Real estate

installation services and sales business Total
ASSETS
Receivables from customers 468,269,055,494 3,351,792,387 - 471,620,847.881
Investment real estate - - 142,637,403,496 142,637,403,496
Inventories 161,269,615,893 - - 161,269,615,893
Repayments to suppliers 190,817,263,107 1,505,992 891 3,969,682,940 196,292,938,938
Unallocated assets - - - 853,481,327.010

TOTAL ASSET

1,825,302,133,218

LIABILITIES

Trade account payables
Advances from customers
Unearned revenue

Loans and liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

307,258,065,367
102,341,490,606

183,308,012,455

-

2,759,873,658
908,591,210

4,005,820,625

1,853,415,321

128,423,553,633

311,871,354,346
103,250,081,816
128,423,553,633
187,313,833,080
235,729,640,866

TOTAL LIABILITIES

966,588,463,741

Segment assets and liabilities as of January 17, 2024, are as follows:

Construction and

Provision of

Real estate

installation services and sales business Total
ASSETS
Receivables from customers 475,239,395 462 18,405,460.430 - 493,644,855,892
Investment real estate - - 150,215,810,380 150,215,810,380
Inventories 216,912,784,999 - - 216,912,784,999
Repayments to suppliers 71,577,484,706 27,029,963,760 - 98,607,448,466
Unallocated assets 680,305,861,724
TOTAL ASSETS 1,639,686,761,461
LIABILITIES
Trade account payables 271,209,874,279 38,465,134,822 - 309,675,009,101
Advances from customers 28,658,061,607 858,010,635 - 29,516,672,332
e - - 134,983 869,697 134,983,869,697
Loans and liabilities 204,730,931,191 4,897,370,625 209,628,301,816

Unallocated liabilities

(683,803,852,946)

TOTAL LIABILITIES
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7.3 Comparative figures

Comparative figures on the balance sheet and related notes are taken from the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2023 which are audited by CPA VIETNAM Auditing Company Limited - A
Member of INPACT.

Ha Noi, March 20", 2025

Preparer Chief Accountant ——General Director
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